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2014 /15 marked a milestone in the history of Hongkong Post
in ways more than one.
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n October 2014, the Central Mail Centre was fully commissioned following

a complicated, year-long migration process involving the consolidation
of our International Mail Centre and the sorting office of the General Post
Office. In August 2014, we embarked on the installation of a newly developed
Integrated Postal Services System (IPSS), initially at all post offices for subsequent
extension to all backend operational and support units. In addition, we achieved
an operating profit of $169 million for 2014 /15, representing a rate of return
on the average net fixed assets of 4.9%.

These developments reflect the underlying thrusts of our corporate effort to
achieve operational and financial sustainability for the Post Office Trading Fund
(POTF). As a unified facility with advanced mail processing equipment primarily
for processing local mail, the Central Mail Centre allows more streamlined
mail flow and thus helps us maintain cost-effective operational performance.
The IPSS enhances customer experience with a modernised counter interface,
improves operational efficiency through seamless integration of counter
functions with backend processes, and supports delivery of new services over
the counter. The turn-around in POTF’s financial performance in 2014 /15 was
a marked improvement to previous years when we were operating at a deficit.
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Costs management, business development for revenue generation and
enhancement of customer experience have been the focuses of our corporate
strategy since | took up the helm of Hongkong Post in October 2011. It is
gratifying to see positive results from the dedicated effort of my team in these
focal areas. More importantly, this encouraging outcome reaffirms that the
postal channel remains relevant in the digital age, and no less for a government-
run postal service such as Hongkong Post.

The question has often been put to me : operating as a trading fund and
remaining as a government department, is Hongkong Post able to compete
with other service providers in the market? This question is constantly on my
mind. My unequivocal response is : yes, we are. This reflects how Hongkong
Post positions itself in an entirely open courier and logistics market in Hong
Kong.

Bearing Government’s universal service obligation, Hongkong Post is a
comprehensive postal service provider offering a broad range of postal and
related solutions at affordable prices with good service quality and reliability.
We cover the entire territory locally and reach even remote corners of the
world. While operating on commercial principles, we have a social mission, i.e.
“linking people delivering business”. Hongkong Post is, in today’s language,
a social enterprise. We take pride in the value we create for our customers,
specifically in nurturing an inclusive community and supporting local economic
development through facilitating personal and business communication as well
as the efficient movement of merchandise.

The effort made in recent years to manage our costs and pursue a customer-
oriented approach in business development has sharpened Hongkong Post’s
competitiveness. Indeed, we view competition positively. It spurs us to drive for
continuous improvement, which in turn brings better value to our customers.
This benefits ourselves, our customers and the community at large.

While we are making headway in building a solid foundation for Hongkong
Post’s sustainable development into the future, we are at a “work in progress”
stage still. The ongoing business review for Hongkong Post, which arose from
the 2015 Budget Speech delivered by the Financial Secretary, is being pursued in
earnest to better meet customer needs through service innovation. The parallel
effort to enhance corporate governance will help us cope with fast-evolving
service demands by reinforcing our management framework. Hongkong Post
is on a transformative journey, with a sense of purpose firmly anchored in our
corporate culture of serving the community wholeheartedly.

Mrs. Jessie TING

Postmaster General
and General Manager of the Post Office Trading Fund

BEBEBBER 2014/15
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Commitment
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Teamwork
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Open Communication
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Learning & Growth

BEHRBAL
World Class People
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Management Succession
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Job Competency
ERETIERE
Career Development
HEBETITR
High Morale

REBRHH
Cultural Alignment

RARIFEE
Good Employer
2B

Learning Organisation

Purpose, Vision, Mission, Values

Our Purpose - Linking People, Delivering Business

In Linking People, Hongkong Post strives to fulfill our social obligation
to bring people together locally and around the world by delivering
correspondence and merchandise promptly and reliably at uniform,

affordable prices.

In Delivering Business, Hongkong Post creates added value for the economy
of Hong Kong by providing business solutions to different sectors and
maintaining the viability of Hongkong Post through diversification into new

business areas.
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Care for Customers from the
Heart

s BRAREEE
Care for Colleagues from the
Heart
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Customers

* BRERAERA

Customer Focused Organisation
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Know the Customers
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Customer Satisfaction
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Customer Loyalty
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Financial

KR RFRE
Sustained Profitability

RAEBE R
Productivity Enhancement
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Cost Control

HREGER

Business Growth
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Business Expansion
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Loss Minimisation
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Productivity
o SHERIFT

Innovation

° MAEME

Value for Money

o HERIFTRE

Innovate for the Future

s ZREBEE

Business Diversification
° FRRIEEIE

Strategic Cooperation
o FHELERTS

Long-term Viability

Our Vision
* To be recognised in Hong Kong as an outstanding service organisation

¢ To be recognised worldwide as an outstanding postal service

Our Mission

e To anticipate changes and respond proactively

* To be a totally committed and valued workforce

Our Values

¢ To care about our customers and our colleagues

TERRAEER

Proactivity

BxA®

Development

Y

Internal Processes

fic it R AR R e
World Class Facilities

5% B B A
Cost-effective & Efficient
Facilities

TERELZSR

Safe Workplace

o FRTHE
Excellence

o BIEER
Anticipation

o BHAMEEENE
Modern Business
Management Systems

e RATIFHE
Process Efficiency

o SEBMBIR
World Class IT

o BERREE
Quality Performance Data /
Information

s HEZER
Total Quality Management
Excellence

o BHATISRS
Match Competitors

* To achieve consistently the highest levels of customer satisfaction

* To be a viable business with sufficient resources to invest in our future

¢ To excel through development, teamwork and innovation

o W FEMIE

Reputable Brand

RAGELR

Local Corporate Image
REEREE
International Postal
Reputation
BITHEEE

Social Responsibility
BRFIRIREH
Environmental
Responsibility
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(Business Development) (Corporate Development) (Postal)
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Postmaster
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General

General
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HERE
Corporate Development

MIKBA L&
Mr. Patrick A LIN
e (HIHNER)

Director (External Affairs)

e TREH
o BIEEL

c REINER
* A ERLRY

BAslELE ZmEEE BT EE
Mr. Lorrience CHOW Mr. Arthur LAU Mr. Leo YAN
wmes (BH%) HE (BRRFRE) wmes (EE)

Director (Finance)

Director (Information System

Services)

* Administrative Services
* Management Services
e Planning and Development
e Information System Services

c ARBHYPEER(BBER)
o BIFIRAE
o ME(BARSRS)

Director (Operations)

B
Ms. Kitty AU YEUNG
WHIWE

Departmental Secretary

e Assistant Postmaster General
(Corporate Development)

e Departmental Secretary

¢ Director (Information
System Services)

REBBRE

Business Development

e REME -
HEMHE
o FrREIR
c EPRIE
o A E A

REREEE
cBERE

* Product Development,

Marketing and Sales
° Speedpost
* Customer Relationship Management
* Local Mail
* Certification Authority Monitoring
 Stamps and Philately

c BEEBHYEER(EHER)
e ME(RBHR - HEREE)

 Assistant Postmaster General
(Business Development)

e Director (Product Development,
Marketing and Sales)

B

B 3%

Financial Services

o BB E 1

¢ International Mail

c AR BHYEER (B

e Assistant Postmaster General
(Postal)

HIER

o RIGE
o BN

e Terminal Dues
* International Logistics

o EfHEE * Mail Processing o MBS (B , ,
o B IRIE * Mail Distribution D * Director (Operations)
o IR * Retail Business
o EETIRE e Productivity Services
o BIEXE * Operations Support
c BEIR® * Customer Service
cHEER ¢ Cash Management o MBS (B1T5) * Director (Finance)
o BE4E - LA« Stamp Supply, Revenue Accounts
@t REKEM  and PO Box
s BREm4est ¢ International Mail Accounts
« BIEEE N &% ° Financial Management and Systems
o BHIEDHT e Financial Analysis
o B R EEfo e Financial Monitoring
o YRt E * Supplies
o BIRR X e International Business o MEL(HTINETE) e Director (External Affairs)
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5,175

Miscellaneous Revenue

008

Mail Traffic

In 2014/15, Hongkong Post (HKP) handled 1.21 billion mail items (or a daily
average of 3.32 million items), representing a 1.8% decrease over 2013/14.
Market competition remained keen.

Financial Performance

HKP registered a significant improvement in financial performance in 2014/15.
Total operating revenue in the year was HK$5,344 million, representing an
increase of 1.8% over 2013/14. Coupled with a 1.5% decrease in operating
costs, there was an overall operating profit of HK$169 million for the year. The
rate of return on the average net fixed assets was 4.9% in 2014/15.

BEME seEER)
Operating costs (HK$ million)

@

2,210

2,562

28 Total 5,175

BIRA& —REHEER X THEIX
Staff Costs General Mail Administration
Operating Expenses Expenses
HHUE (5Es)

Mail volume (million items)
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Your professional
T | promotion solutions.
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Local Mail Traffic

Local mail, which accounted for 85.6% of the total mail traffic in 2014/15,
increased slightly by 0.1% over 2013/14. With targeted marketing campaigns,
the Hongkong Post Circular Service gained in popularity with a 9.2% increase
in trafficin 2014/15.

RibBHE (FBEH)
Local mail volume (million items)

£ Year

=
L
2013/14 1,037
cectmaaaannny; |

2012/13
2011/12 w 1,100
_X s
|
2010/11 = 1,073
'!_!
(=} N B =) -] =
o [= [=3 o (=
=} o =} o [=]
o
=4 BERBBERBTRY 73t B BGRIR
Letter Mail Hongkong Post Circular Service Local CourierPost
HERBA Hity
Registered Mail Others

Areas of Focus

Direct Mail

Despite the global trend of e-substitution and the prevalence of new digital
media, direct mail continues to be a very effective channel for marketing,
as evident from a steady growth of service demand for the Hongkong Post
Circular Service, our unaddressed direct mail service. To cater for the marketing
needs of local SMEs and encourage their patronage, we lowered the service
threshold from 2 000 items to 1 000 items per posting on a trial basis for six
months from early January 2015.

Local Address Cleansing Facility

We launched a local address cleansing facility in December 2014 for bulk
mailers to improve the quality of their address databases. The facility also
provides a Delivery Beat Identifier for each local address that matches the
record in HKP’s address database. Bulk mailers have found this facility a
convenient tool for ensuring correct addressing and speedy mail delivery.

BABBBEFR 2014/15
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International Mail Traffic

International mail, which accounted for 14.4% of the total mail traffic
in 2014/15, decreased by 11.6% during the year. The drop in traffic was
attributable to the strengthening of the US dollar, which affected outbound
internet sales and in turn the mail traffic arising from these sales, as well
as an increasingly competitive market. The major destinations for outgoing
international letters and parcels were Mainland China, the United States, the
United Kingdom, Australia and Canada.

ERBHE (FEH4)
International mail volume (million items)

FE Year

2014/15

2013/14

2012/13

2011/12

2010/11
o Ul - - N
o o vl (=]
o o o
et 2 FE HREE
Air Mail Surface Mail Speedpost

Area of Focus

Integrated Online Posting Platform

To enhance customer convenience, we have consolidated our online posting
platforms into an integrated platform with expanded functionalities (e.g.
preparation of posting and customs declaration forms, access to mail tracking
information and mailing account information, etc.) for the full range of bulk
posting products. The posting information captured electronically on this
platform speeds up mail acceptance at the counter, facilitates timely resources
planning at the backend and eases the migration to e-customs. With this new
platform, bulk mailers, especially online merchants, are able to manage their
postings more efficiently.
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The Postmaster General attended the Post Expo Asia
Pacific held in Hong Kong in May 2014.
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Global Postal Cooperation

Participation in Multilateral Postal Fora

HKP participates in the international postal arena to keep abreast of
developments in the industry, foster cooperation with other postal
administrations and advance our interests.

As a member of the China delegation, HKP participated in the initiatives
and activities organised by the Universal Postal Union, e.g. its regular Postal
Operations Council Meetings (March / April and October 2014), and the Asian-
Pacific Postal Union (APPU), e.g. the meetings of the APPU Executive Council
(September 2014 and March 2015), to discuss the operational, economic and
business aspects of international postal service and to share views with global
postal partners on postal governance issues and postal regulatory policies.

We participated in a joint UPU-Korea training programme in June 2014 to share
our experience in the use of information and communications technology for
postal operations with representatives of postal administrations in Africa.

HKP participated actively in the meetings of the Asia Pacific Post Cooperative
Management Board during the year to pursue with regional postal partners the
development of a new ePacket service, an economical shipping solution with
tracking to support e-Commerce.

Kahala Posts Group

The Kahala Posts Group (KPG) is an alliance of ten major postal administrations
worldwide, with the objectives of improving service level, promoting customer
choice and improving service options for postal express and package services
in the network. The Board of Directors met on 4 occasions in 2014/15 with
the focus on the improvement of service to Mainland China and the US and
exploration of new business opportunity through new product development.
The Postmaster General attended the annual KPG CEO meeting in Xi‘an, China
in September 2014, at which a range of issues concerning enhancement of
operation and new service features for EMS were discussed.

@ 20145128  EXBERERRERALERANRESEETEBR -

In December 2014, a delegation from the State Post Bureau led by Mr Zhao
Xiaoguang, Deputy Director General visited HKP.

BABBBEFR 2014/15
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with a global reach of over 210 destinations;
delivery to major international cities on the
same night or the next working day after
posting at the earliest; reasonable and all-
inclusive pricing and full-scale mail tracking
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e-EMS
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a new service launched in July 2014 to
deliver e-Commerce items from overseas
through Hong Kong to Mainland China

Hongkong Post Annual Report 2014/15

BEAHRBERRBERBBZ UL  THEHTRIKERBNE
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The growth of local and cross-boundary e-Commerce
for merchandise of all kinds has generated demand for
different delivery solutions. HKP offers a range of services
that address the specific needs of internet traders and
e-shoppers. Selected services are highlighted below.

REEARBHEH I - UBEH VBN BB A RRRBHRENRLH B - BEEA
EE FPIRRSER A

with basic mail tracking and email notification of mail acceptance and delivery status as
well as a choice between mail delivery and post office collection

7K b B PR IR
Local CourierPost
—IERER B HEMAREZBARERY - T WBIHREREREHRE

courier service with full mail tracking and proof of delivery as well as guaranteed delivery time

@ BB EH RS

Post Office Counter Collection

—IERFRRIBAL R IRTS - REFIRMEBIBR M HEE

a customised counter collection service to provide merchants a choice of collection at the
post office

_%?alﬁ;i*ﬁ & e-Express
1vial
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for bulk posting of Registered Air B BB - EEREE - FREE EREEA

Mail items
an economical delivery solution with tracking for
items not exceeding 2 kg; currently covers Australia,
Canada, New Zealand, Russia, the United Kingdom
and the United States and the network is expanding
AERFER R2 5 REIE
Bulk Air Mail Cool EMS Box

REEENAERTLBZEE R 20147 B B AT A (EHE L B —H 2 3 R EE
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an economical solution for sending

ordinary Air Mail items in bulk a new EMS service launched in collaboration with

Japan Post in July 2014 for delivering chilled items
from Japan to Hong Kong
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To facilitate posting preparation by e-merchants

and streamline mail acceptance at counters,

HKP has developed two online posting LRBEMLBYTe EEEEHBER (HINEHMS
platforms, namely EC-Ship and My Speedpost, KemMNBAXE) UREGESERFRENER - B
as well as Application Program Interfaces for BALRMELHENEMREOGERY - 1% LPUREREN
batch uploading of posting information. B o

ShopThruPost is an online shopping platform for
HKP’s products (e.g. philatelic products, souvenirs
items and postal stationery) and merchandise offered
by other retailers, supported by HKP’s delivery
service. Delivery options include door delivery and
counter collection.

EEBRESFREIER LI RE  BRBEE
EFEEABREPWTEEMREZY  URREES
FRETHREEFVERABETRS - HMAE
201455 A B AERE S 1D B 282048 TRSAR
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Hongkong Post e-Cert supports online ygpmargrme FHER  RMSRERHBER
identity authentication and ensures the AR R BR IS R AL M :;ilaﬁﬁ%;ﬁﬁﬂwﬁﬁﬁ;%o

integrity, confidentiality and non-repudiation

of the data transmitted in electronic To meet customer needs arising from e-Commerce,
transactions. We started issuing e-Cert on we will continue to develop service solutions in
Smart ID Card with 2048-bit RSA key length collaboration with other postal operators and service
in May 2014. partners.
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Retail Business

Post Office Network

Following a review of the changing postal behaviour of the local population, improvements
in public transport and the availability of additional channels of service provision, the planning
guidelines for post offices in the Hong Kong Planning Standards and Guidelines were revised
in December 2014. Under the revised guidelines, large groups of population in urban areas
should have access to a post office within 1.2 km from where they reside or work. For rural
areas, a distance of 3.2 km is assumed for planning purpose.

As at end March 2015, HKP operated an extensive network of 127 post offices (including 2
mobile post offices) throughout the territory. We will keep this network under regular review in
the light of the updated planning guidelines and the prevailing postal service demand.

Reprovisioning of Post Office Facilities

Lee On Post Office and Sha Kok Post Office were reprovisioned in September 2014. Customers
of these two post offices enjoy improved service provision in a user-focused environment after
reprovisioning.
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Counter Collection

In June 2014, we launched a new counter collection service for online purchases made on
Taobao.com. E-shoppers benefit from the convenience of collecting their purchases at a post
office of their choice at an economical shipping cost. The service receives an enthusiastic
market response.

PayThruPost

The transaction volume of PayThruPost stayed stable during the year. We continued to recruit
new merchants joining the service. For instance, Senior Citizen Home Safety Association, which
is well-known for its Personal Emergency Link Service, joined PayThruPost in August 2014.

PostShop Products

HKP develops new stationery items and collectible items from time to time in response to
market demands. In July 2014, we expanded our popular postal stationery product range by
introducing a new series of carton boxes in flat shape - the Lecture Box series. In addition, a set
of three high-quality postal vehicle models, featuring a Mail Delivery Car, a Mail Delivery Van
and a Mobile Post Office, were added to our collection of postal vehicle models.

Diversifying the Use of Postal Infrastructure

HKP offers suitable space in our extensive postal infrastructure for advertising and other uses,
e.g. installing ATMs in post offices, advertising on HKP's second pouch boxes and the external
walls of selected post offices.

BABBBEFR 2014/15
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In September 2014, we started to install Integrated Postal
Services System (IPSS) in our counter offices by phases
for completion by early July 2015. In the second half
of 2015, the system will be installed in all our backend
offices. Apart from automating counter operations with
re-engineered workflow, IPSS facilitates the planning and
deployment of manpower and other resources. In parallel
with the IPSS project, we installed 271 additional Octopus
card readers in our post offices for the convenience of
customers.
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Through streamlining counter operations and integrating counter transactions
with the backend workflow, the IPSS improves the operational efficiency and
cost-effectiveness in the provision of counter services. At the same time, the
new system brings about other notable benefits, including provision of one-stop
counter service to customers, timely generation of management information on
mail traffic and revenue, as well as enhanced cash and stock control.
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Diversified Stamp Themes

In 2014/15, HKP issued a new set of definitive stamps, eight sets of special stamps and three stamp sheetlets on a diversity

of themes that reflect the different facets of Hong Kong and the richness of Chinese arts and culture as well as subjects of
international interest.
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The new “2014 Hong Kong Definitive Stamps” introduced
the distinctive landforms and landscape of Hong Kong Global
Geopark of China. This is the fourth set of definitive stamps
issued by HKP since the establishment of the Hong Kong Special
Administrative Region.
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The "Year of the Ram” stamps were issued in January 2015, together with a new series of Lunar New Year animals stamps in four
consecutive years (Dragon, Snake, Horse and Ram).
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The stamp sheetlet on the theme of “A Journey through Hong
Kong's Postal History — A Glimpse of Hong Kong's Postal History

through the Old General Post Office Building (1911 - 1976)"
bore the first round-top stamp issued by HKP.
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To complement the festive season, a new set of “Heartwarming”

y — e stamps with designs in heart shape was issued on Valentine's
[EREERI] BRRE—(ERAE B BAERH Day in 2015.

The “Christmas Stamps [lI” portrayed a Christmas with
distinctive Hong Kong characteristics.

In the "HONG KONG 2015 — 31st Asian International Stamp
Exhibition Stamp Sheetlet Series No. 1”, silhouettes of consumer
goods and gourmet food in the stamp design highlighted the
theme of “Shopping and Dining” of the Exhibition.
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The “World Heritage in China Series No. 3:

China Danxia” stamp sheetlet depicted the
unique world class landforms of Danxia.
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Cantonese opera, as a traditional
form of performing art, has a
large following in Hong Kong. The
“Cantonese Opera Costumes” stamps
featured seven distinctive costume
types in beautiful embroidery.
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The “Hong Kong Museums Collection — Paintings by Mr WU Guanzhong” stamps
featured seven masterpieces from the artist’s generous donations to the Hong Kong

Museum of Art, which well-illustrated the innovative spirit of the artist. The stamp
sheetlet bore the largest stamp ever issued in Hong Kong.
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specialities in Hong Kong and Malaysia.
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The “Hong Kong, China — Malaysia Joint Issue on
Local Food” stamps introduced the local culinary
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The “International Day of Families” stamps
promoted the core values of the family.
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Featuring seven astronomical phenomena, the “Astronomical
Phenomena” stamps took us to the fascinating world of
astronomy. The stamp issue in March 2015, just ahead of the
lunar eclipse, caught the attention of astronomy fans and the
general public alike.
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Special Printing Effect

To add interest to stamp collecting, a variety of special printing effects were
employed on stamp issues released during the year. These include 22K gold-
plated lace metal and silver hot foil on the “Gold and Silver Stamp Sheetlet on
Lunar New Year Animals — Horse/ Ram”, silver hot foil on the “Silver Hot Foil
Lunar New Year Animals Stamps — Dragon/ Snake/ Horse/ Ram”, embossing on
the “Heartwarming” stamps and silk screen printing for the “World Heritage
in China Series No. 3: China Danxia” stamp sheetlet. The “Astronomical
Phenomena” stamp sheetlet applied for the first time on Hong Kong stamps
holographic 3D foil with micro embossing effect.

Stamps as Customised Gifts

HKP provides corporations and individuals with a convenient one-stop
customised philatelic souvenir service from design to production, making use
of the broad variety of stamps issued in Hong Kong. The expanding range of
Heartwarming Stamps offers additional scope for innovative souvenir designs
and has fuelled the demand for HKP’s customised gift service.

Promoting Philately

We stepped up effort to promote philately, especially among the younger
generation, during the year. Key events organised in 2014/15 are highlighted
below:

e collaborated with Agriculture, Fisheries and Conservation Department in
launching the new definitive stamps on the theme of the geoparks in Hong
Kong;

e co-organised workshops and talks on astronomy and stamp-collecting
with the Leisure and Cultural Services Department and the Boys and Girls
Clubs Association respectively for young people when the “Astronomical
Phenomena” stamps were issued;

e co-organised the 14th Inter-School Stamp Exhibits Competition with the
Education Bureau to promote philately among students; and

e co-organised an event with the Jockey Club Design Institute for Social
Innovation of the Hong Kong Polytechnic University in December 2014 for
experienced stamp designers and veteran stamp collectors to share their
experience with young stamp designers and interested students on stamps
and stamp design.

To augment this effort, we launched a teaching kit on postal service and
philately in November 2014, targeting kindergarten and junior primary
students. It has received an encouraging response from both teachers and
students.
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The relocation of the International Mail Centre (IMC) to make
way for the Shatin to Central Link presented an opportunity to
consolidate the two major mail processing centres of IMC and
the sorting office of the General Post Office under one roof.
As a purpose-fit, integrated mail sorting facility, the Central
Mail Centre (CMC) brings about enhancement in operational
efficiency through streamlined mail flow and upgraded
equipment. Completed on time and within budget, the CMC
started full operation in October 2014.
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The CMC adopts various eco-friendly designs to reduce energy consumption and
minimise environmental impacts. The curtain walls and the atrium bring in natural
light. Lighting and air-conditioning systems are equipped with zonal controls. The
green roof helps lower the indoor temperature of the top floor of the building, and
provides a rest area for over 1 000 staff working there. The building design of the
CMC achieved the BEAM Gold Standard for New Buildings.
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six-storey high with a site area of around
7 700 sgq.m.;

equipped with a Vehicle Management System
which automatically assigns parking lots for
incoming vehicles;

equipped with three Culler-Facer-Cancellers,
each with a processing capacity of 27 000
items per hour, for postage checking, stamp
cancellation and preliminary mail sorting;

installed with 12 Optical Video Coding
Integrated Systems for sorting letters, each
with a processing capacity of 34 000 items
per hour; and

with a Bulk Acceptance Counter and loading
platforms to facilitate convenient posting of
mail in bulk.
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The Secretary for the Civil Service and the Chief Secretary for Administration visited the CMC in September and November 2014 respectively.

They were impressed by the environmentally-friendly architectural designs and the extensive use of mechanisation in the CMC, which help
enhance both operational efficiency and energy efficiency while at the same time providing an improved working environment for staff.
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Customer Feedback

In 2014/15, we received 2 744 commendations and 172 complaints from
members of the public, representing an increase of 5.1% and a decrease
of 31.2% respectively compared to 2013/14.

Customer Satisfaction Survey

We conduct customer satisfaction surveys regularly. In 2014/15, the
overall customer satisfaction level reached 98.7 %, with satisfaction levels
of 97.7% for counter service, 98.8% for delivery service and 96.8% for
hotline service.

Customer Liaison Groups

HKP has set up three Customer Liaison Groups, with members coming
from different sectors of the community, such as District Councils, local
chambers of commerce and SME associations, account customers,
philatelists and the general public, to tap their views on HKP’s service
provision. A total of 12 meetings were held with these groups in 2014/15
to discuss a range of product and service issues. Valuable comments and

suggestions were received from group members to help us improve our
product offerings as well as service quality.
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PostalPlus for SME

PostalPlus for SME serves as a communication platform between HKP
and its local SME customers. Members receive e-newsletters which
contain updates on postal solutions and business tips. In collaboration
with local SME associations, we organise workshops with customised
content such as e-Commerce, brand-building and advertising solutions,

logistics solutions, etc. to cater for the specific service needs of different
industries. As at end March 2015, PostalPlus for SME had over 44 000
members.

Public Recognition

Speedpost

HKP was awarded the Gold Level Certification by the Universal Postal
Union Express Mail Service Cooperative for the excellent performance
of our Speedpost service. Only five postal administrations worldwide
received the Gold Level Certification in 2014.

Speedpost won “The Best SME Partners 2014 — Logistics” award
organised by Economic Digest for the eighth consecutive year. It was
also named the “Excellent Brand of Business Express Service” in the
“Hong Kong Leaders’ Choice 2014" organised by Metro Finance.

Customer Service

Delivery postman Mr LAU Chun-wai won the Individual Award (Field &
Special Service) — Silver Award in the Customer Service Excellence Award
2014 organised by the Hong Kong Association for Customer Service
Excellence.

Corporate Excellence

HKP ranked second among ten major government departments in
the Hong Kong Government Service Excellence Index 2014 compiled
by the Efficiency Unit of the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region
Government.

In the Junzi Corporation Survey 2014 organised by Hang Sang
Management College, HKP was once again recognised as a Junzi
Corporation and received the Exemplary Business Award, Junzi
Corporation Gold Award, "Yi” Award and “Xin” Award. With our
commitment to consumer care, HKP was recognised as a “Consumer
Caring Company” under the Consumer Caring Scheme organised by
GS1 Hong Kong.

BABBBEFR 2014/15
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OUR TEAM

Our Team

As at end March 2015, HKP had 5 090 civil servants and 1 942 non-civil
service contract staff in its team to cope with the day-to-day operational
workload, which could fluctuate widely depending on the market
conditions and the postal volume.

Manpower Development

To meet HKP’s evolving business needs and ensure efficient operation,
we devote continuous effort to equip our workforce with the necessary
professional knowledge and skill set. Vocational training covering different
operational functions, product knowledge, occupational safety and health
as well as customer service skills is arranged for our staff for performance
enhancement. In addition, professional development programmes are
offered to develop the supervisory, staff management and leadership
skills of our staff and to prepare them for career development. This is
supplemented by on-the-job coaching, briefings and experience sharing
sessions. The number of training days offered to staff in 2014/15 increased
to 39 432 days, compared to 37 862 days in the previous year.

We rolled out a number of initiatives during the year to enhance integrity
management in HKP. In addition to the inclusion of integrity management
in the induction courses for all new recruits, seminars and workshops
are organised regularly for senior officers to share experience and best
practices in relevant fields such as procurement, contract management
and financial management. We also invited representatives from the
Independent Commission Against Corruption to conduct talks for our
staff to raise their awareness about the nurturing of a clean civil service
culture, the importance of supervisory accountability and the managing
of staff integrity.
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To foster a learning culture in the Department, e-learning programmes
are available on the HKP intranet for all staff to access training materials
relevant to their jobs.

Occupational Safety and Health

HKP strives to maintain a safe and healthy environment for all staff
in accordance with the Department’s occupational safety and health
strategy and its Safety Management System. Training on occupational
safety and health, focusing on measures to prevent injury at work, is
provided for frontline staff and managerial grade officers. Regular
safety audits are conducted for all units to ensure compliance with the
regulatory requirements. The employee’s injury on duty related cases
decreased from 278 cases in 2010 to 219 cases in 2014.

Before the new Central Mail Centre came into full operation in October
2014, a comprehensive risk assessment on occupational safety and health
issues was conducted with the assistance of external professionals from
the Occupational Safety and Health Council to ensure full compliance with
all prevailing safety and health requirements and to identify opportunities
for continuous improvement in the design of safe work procedures.

Post Office Recreation Club (PORC)

The PORC organises recreational and sport activities for HKP staff and
their families. These activities provide opportunities for relaxation and
fostering the team spirit of our workforce. In 2014/15, interest group
activities such as yoga, tennis, Wing Chun and Pilates classes, badminton,
football, basketball and long run competitions as well as local tours were
organised.
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Public Engagement

Exhibitions

HKP and the Antiquities and Monuments Office jointly organised an
exhibition entitled “A Journey through Hong Kong’s Postal History — A
Glimpse of Hong Kong’s Postal History through the Old General Post
Office Building (1911 - 1976)" at the Hong Kong Heritage Discovery
Centre from April to August 2014. The exhibition chronicled the history
of the local postal service and highlighted the architectural features of
the magnificent historic old General Post Office Building. A special stamp
sheetlet and a prestige stamp booklet were released to mark the occasion.
Both the exhibition and the related commemorative souvenirs were well
received by postal enthusiasts. The exhibition is subsequently taken to
different locations across the territory from September 2014 to late 2015.

Love Post Day

In support of World Post Day, HKP has designated 9 October as Love Post
Day to promote letter-writing and spread the message of love and care in
the community. On this special day, we invite everyone in Hong Kong to
take part by sending a personal letter to a local recipient, free of charge.
We ran this programme for the 11th year in 2014.

In support of World Post Day in 2015 and the Universal Postal Union'’s
44th International Letter-Writing Competition, HKP and the Education
Bureau co-organised a letter-writing competition for young people in
Hong Kong on the theme of “Tell us about the world you want to grow
up in” in November 2014.

Corporate Social Responsibility

Caring Organisation

HKP continues to be a Caring Organisation under the scheme run by the
Hong Kong Council of Social Service, in recognition of the effort made in
caring for the community, our employees and the environment.

Barrier-free Access (BFA)

In April 2011, we embarked on a programme to install barrier-free access
facilities in all our post offices to provide easy access to postal services
for all our customers. The programme was completed in June 2014 as
scheduled.

Preparing Young People for the Workplace

HKP participates in a number of programmes to prepare young people
for the transition from an education environment to the workplace. In
summer 2014, 21 students took part in HKP's Post-Secondary Student
Summer Internship Programme to acquire work experience in human
resource management, accounting and marketing. We also hosted a Job
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Shadow Day for 14 secondary students in March 2015 under the Job
Shadowing Programme organised by Junior Achievement Hong Kong.

Through participating in the Sunnyway Programme organised by
Social Welfare Department, HKP provided job attachment and training
opportunities to two young people with disabilities in 2014/15.

PostCare Club

Staff of HKP and their family members organised and participated in the
following activities of our PostCare Club during the year, showing their
care for the less privileged in the community:

e weekly free tutorial classes for children at Caritas Centre and Hong
Kong Red Cross John F. Kennedy Centre;

e visit to Holy Carpenter Church District Elderly Community Centre in
August 2014; and

e visit to Lok Sin Tong Leung Kau Kui Home for the Elderly in Wong Tai
Sin in November 2014.

Support to Social Enterprises and Charitable Organisations

HKP provided venue support for a pop up store set up by Y Multi, a
local social enterprise jointly run by ethnic minorities and local grassroots
women under the YMCA, to sell handmade ethnic products and henna
drawing service at the General Post Office in February 2015. The event
provided an opportunity for the social enterprise to gain experience in
business operation and for the public to access unique products and
services at a convenient location.

In support of the “Lunar New Year Gift Transfer Programme 2015"
under St. James’ Settlement’s People’s Food Bank initiative, HKP set up
collection points at the General Post Office and Tsim Sha Tsui Post Office
for the public to make food donations. There was also a collection point
at the Central Mail Centre for staff donations. All food gifts collected
were for distribution to under-privileged families in Hong Kong.

Other Charitable Activities

HKP participated in a variety of charitable activities organised by The
Community Chest of Hong Kong, including the “Corporate and
Employee Contribution Programme”, “Green Day”, “Love Teeth Day”
and “Skip Lunch Day”, during the year. We also supported other
charitable organisations such as the Children’s Heart Foundation, World
Wide Fund for Nature Hong Kong, the Fu Hong Society and the Agency

for Volunteer Service by publicising their activities to our workforce.
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OUR ENVIRONMENT

Environmental Responsibility

To protect the environment and in support of sustainable development,
HKP operates its postal business in an environmentally responsible
manner.

Energy Saving

In 2014/15, we continued to implement green measures and reduce
our energy consumption. In support of the Government's effort in
combating climate change, seven post office premises participated in the
Energy-cum-Carbon Audit Programme organised by the Environmental
Protection Department. In addition, the Air Mail Centre took part in the
Carbon Reduction Programme of the Hong Kong International Airport.
The amount of greenhouse gas emission of the Air Mail Centre in
2014 reduced by about 13% compared to 2013. Incorporating various
eco-friendly and energy-efficient installations, the new Central Mail
Centre adopts a green building design, which helps foster a culture of
environmental conservation among staff working in the Centre.

Green Procurement

HKP adopts the green specifications promulgated by the Environmental
Protection Department (EPD) in arranging procurement. In 2014, our
green purchase value accounted for 92.7% of the total expenditure on
products on the green procurement list promulgated by EPD, compared
to 84.5% in 2013.

Waste Reduction and Recycling

In order to minimise waste, around 140 tons of wooden pallets received
from bulk mailers along with their postings were collected from the
Central Mail Centre for recycling. Recycled paper accounted for one-third
of our total paper consumption in 2014/15. Over 1 500 kg food waste
was collected from the staff canteen in the Central Mail Centre and was
converted to organic fertilizer during the year.
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Postal Fleet
HKP maintained a postal vehicle fleet of 159 environmentally-friendly
vehicles, including 81 vehicles which comply with Euro V emission
standards and eight electric vehicles. Bicycles are used in some rural areas
for mail delivery.

Philatelic Products

HKP’s philatelic products, including first day covers and souvenir covers,
use environmentally-friendly paper. The stamp paper is made with
Forest Stewardship Council (FSC) approved pulp and is recyclable. The
base paper for use in stamp printing is made by an ISO 14001 certified
company, which adopts an environmental management system in its
operation.

The new set of definitive stamps issued in 2014, featuring the distinctive
landforms of Hong Kong Global Geopark of China, promotes public
appreciation of nature and raises awareness of the importance of geo-
conservation.

As at end March 2015, more than 16 500 local standing order customers
and 1 750 overseas mail order customers had registered to make stamp
purchases via Stamp OnNet, our online ordering platform. Over 24 500
local standing order customers had chosen to receive philatelic newsletters
and stamp order collection letters by email. We will continue to promote
electronic communication and transaction with our customers so as to
further reduce our paper consumption.

Participation in Green Campaigns
In 2014/15, HKP participated in and encouraged our staff to support a
number of campaigns to protect the environment, including:

e “Green Day" organised by The Community Chest of Hong Kong ;

e “Hong Kong No Air-Con Night” by Green Sense ;

e "Earth Hour 2015” by World Wide Fund for Nature ;

e “Tree Planting Challenge 2014" by Friends of the Earth (HK) ;

e "Use Less, Waste Less in My Hands” campaign ;

e mobile collection service for waste electrical and electronic equipment ;
e Biz-Green Dress Day for managerial staff ; and

e sustainability-conscious food consumption in official entertainment.

Environmental protection issues are regularly covered in briefings for our
managerial and frontline staff as well as staff newsletters to promote
green awareness in our workforce and green practices in our daily
operation.
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RN BRARERSRERERT -

The Kahala Posts Group Board of Directors meeting
was held in Hong Kong.

BTN [BREREE—RBTEE] RENSHIBE -

A set of special stamps entited “Hong Kong
Museums Collection — Paintings by Mr WU

EBBHTEREER B S DR Guanzhong”  was issued.

ARSI E R B HE B BBIE &

£E$ = gu#’b °© __| ' i
Hongkong Post, as part of the _—;hﬁi; =
China delegation, attended the [ - s 22

meeting of the Universal Postal
Union Postal Operations Council
held in Bern, Switzerland.

2014

BT [BERI—REBRERAE BT TEIRRER ] RREH EAE BN A E BB RRY -
ARBEBEBHESE (1911-1976) | & FRIFREE
BRER/NE - UENZBRETE . . .
S EAIRIEE - REHA001444 A set of special stamps Collection Service.
on the theme of
RAZE8H - “ , S @

International Day of E 3 ﬂa I':fi Iﬁg

A stamp sheetlet on the theme Families” was issued. | one com
of “A Journey through Hong ;
Kong's Postal History — A
Glimpse of Hong Kong s Postal
History through the Old General
Post Office Building (1911 -
1976)" was issued to mark the
opening of the exhibition at the
Hong Kong Heritage Discovery
Centre from April until August
2014.

Hongkong Post launched the Taobao Counter

BEBBHY [BNFREE] T8 FEFREE
REEF -
Hongkong Post launched the  “My Speedpost”

online platform for the convenience of Speedpost
account customers.

ERBR RO R EERER G o

Installation of barrier-free access facilities in all post
offices was completed.
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HHRSFREERY - 8 HANSR
RmEFEERE -

Eahals Posts Greaup CED

The Cool EMS Box service for
delivery of chilled items from
Japan to Hong Kong was
launched.

]

), 1 J.J AR LY .L {" E

BABBHRETEATRTH RRUERAS SRS -

Hongkong Post attended the Kahala Posts Group CEO
Meeting held in Xi’an, China.

o rh B T HE L B A R B A e IR TN [REIRE | ABEMERIEE .. BAEBBUPBERKERE S HFEEREHREHRESETH

HRR , DMEREFHBBEGENTEEees -
A set of special stamps on the
The e-EMS Service to China, a theme of “Cantonese Opera Hongkong Post attended the meeting of the Asian-
joint service with China Post, was Costumes” was issued. Pacific Postal Union Executive Council held in Colombo,
launched. Sri Lanka as part of the China delegation.

BITH—E [20145 B8 BABE] -

A new set of “2014 Hong Kong
Definitive Stamps” was issued.

B [B8201—F =+ —ENEEBRRETR/ARR
FIFE—5R] -

The “HONG KONG 2015 — 31st Asian International
Stamp Exhibition Stamp Sheetlet Series No. 1" was
issued.

R ES B RLEEA R -

Installation of the Integrated Postal Services System in
post offices commenced.

BABBBEFR 2014/15



BT [HEEE—SRADHA %
17 HBRM | BB RIEER -

A set of special stamps on the
theme of “Hong Kong, China
— Malaysia Joint Issue on Local
Food” was issued.

EEBBENFRN [BEEFBER] -

Hongkong Post celebrated the  “Love
PostDay” for the eleventh year.

ESHRRERFER RS HLEE
B ERSNEREHRRGEEE
gEH -

Hongkong Post, as part of the
China delegation, attended the
meeting of the Universal Postal
Union Postal Operations Council
held in Bern, Switzerland.

hREAHOREEA o

The Central Mail Centre was in full
operation.
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BT [EREBZRI -

“Christmas Stamps Ill”  were released.

BHERAREESVFEERIELE  UEEEHE
BB FAERRE SR IELER2015%F [HERIK
Al -

A letter-writing competition for young people in
Hong Kong was co-organised with the Education
Bureau in support of the Universal Postal Union s
44th International Letter-Writing Competition for
the World Post Day in 2015.

BERBREFERES AT TN AT F B B
BTG mIE o

Hongkong Post participated in the Asian-Pacific
Postal Union Postal Business Forum held in
Bangkok, Thailand.

BT [HEERBERSIFE =5
TEIFHE ] RREEMBER/ IR o

A stamp sheetlet on the theme of

“World Heritage in China Series No. 3:

China Danxia"was issued.

= @
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DEC

FREEUABARER [MIBRER

2] WBEHEFAMKETR:— -

Speedpost service was offered

as one of the shipping solutions
for orders made on the Small
Order Zone online selling platform
launched by the Hong Kong Trade
Development Council.

BSEBUE 1% 5 APl (Application
Programming Interface) fE T2 =52

Hongkong Post launched the
EC-Ship Application Programming
Interface service.

RRERFE PRI EE AT -

Alocal address cleansing facility for
use by bulk mailers was launched.

2015

BB IBOR KB 5 R ST
g ERERFEM2 00014 EE
1 0004 ©

The Hongkong Post Circular
Service lowered the posting
threshold from 2 000 items to
1 000 items on a trial basis.

4

BT [RRLR (F5F) | BFH

=
= °

A set of special stamps to
celebrate the “Year of the
Ram” was issued.

BB FER AR BRITHEMNR
REFBEAFAEERREEH

Hongkong Post attended the
meeting of the Asia Pacific Post
Cooperative Management Board
held in Narita, Japan.

SAEESOMIEL R R & R
NEERRERER - Be R
Fko

The business hours of 59
post offices were adjusted
to optimise resource

deployment in response to
service demand.

FEB

BITERE [DELE] BE -
BERAPROIVEZRRERT ©

The sixth issue of the
Heartwarming Stamps
series, featuring different
heart-shaped designs, was
released.

EHREH T BRBEEERR
ERREMARERTRE -

The EC-Ship platform was
revamped with an extended
service scope to cover all bulk
mail services.

AT TRICRR | BEMFHIEER

A set of special stamps on the theme
of “Astronomical Phenomena” was

released.

e-Express IRIEHHEZHKAEH -

e-Express service was extended to Russia.

MAR

e-Express R BIRMEHABBELER [/MEEXR
BERE] MINERESR -

e-Express and Parcel services were offered
as additional shipping solutions on the Small
Order Zone online selling platform of the
Hong Kong Trade Development Council.

BB BBOATBIRKEKE &7 HEEC AR
FHRERTHEM R TR RNTES

EE o

ER=

Hongkong Post attended the meeting of the
Asian-Pacific Postal Union Executive Council
held in Islamabad, Pakistan as part of the
China delegation.
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(B8] PR S 4 S 7%

International Mail Business

o ZHE/TESHREE e Air/Surface Letter and Packet

7 1t B 4 S 5
Local Mail Business
o AKith{=¢rRF 4 ° Local Letter and Packet

o KitEE * Local Parcel o ZHE}/TEEE e Air/Surface Parcel
o ZAi#SEEMF © Local Registered Mail o ZoER/SEEBHMRED M o Air/Surface Registered Mail
o AHbEFERIE ¢ Local CourierPost o 4R EIE e Speedpost
o SKIE e Smart Post * e-Express e e-Express
o AihEHIF|Y o Local Periodicals o RERFEHM e Bulk Air Mail
o HEHEHER © Hongkong Post Circular o 5 R e iMail®
BIRH Detrilies o BIEEHERME e Cross-boundary Direct Mail
o MEE e e-Post o EIMREERTIY) e International Periodicals

}

A I P4 }
e 3
Philately

BRITBRBE  BRBRRLSHE o Issue of Definitive, Special and Commemorative

e-Services
o [445RE e ShopThruPost

« BRTBEBRSNBRAITHES Stamps AL L pMDIYhK
o [DELE | BEIRITEIRS e Local Standing Order Service and Overseas Mail Order o BIREEEHMET e-Cert
SRS S R Service 4 (DMDIY.hk) . g
L] A = 00 ° u "
e Heartwarming Stamps Customised Service o EYHE LELEE L R

Personalised Service
e Customised Gifts Service o [RBLEFR]

AT BUR

Y

Retail Business

o A e PayThruPost A
o EFRE o Remittance Service | g
o B AR e Counter Collection ?
o IHEARRIE Service -
. =
o EBREYERZL © Trade Declaration \‘_.d
BERTE Service
o WBEER * Registration Service \‘_‘ . =
for the Road Cargo -
=
© Eﬁlgﬁﬁ System r

e PostShop Products

* Advertising Service |
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LOOKING FORWARD

During the past year, we launched new and improved services to meet
the changing customer needs, particularly demands generated by
e-Commerce. We will review our business strategy and operations on
an ongoing basis, and take every opportunity to leverage on the latest
technology to enhance our services provision.

Our Business

Hongkong Post Review

Arising from the Financial Secretary’s Budget Speech in February 2015, we
are conducting a review on HKP's business operation, with the objectives
of further supporting the development of the logistics industry in Hong
Kong and expanding its service offerings in response to market needs.

Closer Partnership with Customers

We will continue to explore work-sharing arrangements to improve our
operational efficiency while allowing bulk posting customers to enjoy
high quality postal service at attractive prices.

Online Tool for Correct Addressing

We will launch an online tool for the public to check the correct
presentation of local addresses in the latter half of 2015 so as to assist
prompt mail delivery. For each local address that matches the record in

HKP’'s address database, the tool will show the address in the correct
presentation format and a QR code. The user may save the address
electronically, print an address label or capture the address on the user’s
smart phone by scanning the QR code.

PR R

EEFRARARE

REATRIBEEZR ARNBRARFEEE -
BRBRARABRItEREHND  SEBHRAERIK
ER BRARFHREER BRARBER - AREBEK
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#77 o MR ELRBHEBABPFIREAIE  EREET
fE°

BYHREEERERAS
BRNBHEERRBEETOBHREEEREBH R
FE o FILNBENMBREIRFEIERE - BRI REEE
ERNFE - BEMEE - RENMETIEEE20145F
FRER  FTELBE2017FFHR2EEH

BRRE RS

FAPIR IE 7370 R B4 D RO B SRS R AT AN SR S A
PG - B TIER2015F FHE2016F FRDHEER
T o REFTRIE - REERT DML 91 000H ALK
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Our Infrastructure

Reprovisioning of the General Post Office (GPO) Building

To make way for the development of the New Central Harbourfront,
the existing GPO Building will need to be reprovisioned. While district-
tied facilities currently accommodated in the GPO Building, including the
GPO Delivery Office, the GPO Speedpost Section, the GPO counters and
Post Office Box Section will be reprovisioned in Central District, the HKP
Headquarters will be relocated elsewhere. HKP is closely working with
relevant Government departments to take forward the reprovisioning
project.

Mail Flow Management and Tracking System

We will replace the existing Track and Trace System by a new Mail Flow
Management and Tracking System. New functionalities will be added to
enhance operational efficiency and improve planning, deployment and
monitoring of operational resources. System development commenced in
late 2014, and the new system will be fully commissioned by mid-2017.

Mechanised Letter Sorting System

We are in the process of installing a Chinese Character Address
Recognition function in the Mechanised Letter Sorting Systems in the
Central Mail Centre. The project is implemented in phases from mid-
2015 to late 2016. Upon project completion, about 91 000 machinable
letters with printed local addresses in Chinese can be sorted mechanically
every day.
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e 2014/15 PINEIAEE 2015/16 AL i 2014/15 PIAPVALIN 2015/16
Ak #5#5 Performance Pledge Ak 7545 Performance Pledge
i 9 BiE %5 [T e 9 BiE %5 [T
Target Performance [EEEIfe[S Target Performance Target
it & BB B4 Local and International Mail BREIE R A i BBUEIE Speedpost and Local CourierPost
1. ARFEHERRFTE T —EIERRERSA 99.0% 99.8% | 99.0% 9. WREE PRSI RG E K E PR R H AR H
Deliver locally posted letters to local addressees by the following working day ' ' ’ Provide pick-up service for Speedpost items within the period as specified in the 99.5% 99.9% 99.5%
2 EEMBHNZETERARERE A 00,59, coc | sasn Service Information Sheet
Deliver Bulk Economy letters to addressees within 3 working days ' ' ' 10. HOFREEBHORIETHEBRENRS  IRRTEBXRERZQT - BER
3. EABEELHHENNETERPREREA 60.5% 100% | 09.5% AR _ g _ 99.5% 99.9% | 99.5%
Deliver Hongkong Post Circular items within 4 working days . ° DellYer outward Speedpost items accepted.before the.: sp.e.afled Iajtest times for
b O B SR R + B B oA T B 5 BB 2 e posting to air carriers on the same day, subject to availability of flights
. 2o NEE R R AR S - BRI IA TS SRR EREREMITAOM
=T - BEETE T / 1M, ABRSRFEBEON EFRRRES - ATRE—EIERRIREREA
= =R = . . . . . - o o 9
Despatch outward airmail items, posted before the advertised latest time for Ee}llveré.r(l)v(\)/ard Speedpost items on the same working day for items arriving 99.5% 99.7% 99.5%
posting, to the designated air carrier, subject to availability of flights ctore b:Lbam
e 15 1 mEE AT —ETIER . . 99,09, 12, N30 B BUR R BP 1% IR 7% A & P 1) IR IR
Non-peak period' Within the same day or the following working day 99.0% 99.9% e DeIiYer Local CourierPost items according to the standards specified in the 99.5% 99.9% | 99.5%
= g g FETHEER ) ) 00.0% Service Leaflet
Peak periodi Within 5 working days 90.0% 100% =
LR Retail Business
5. AR ZEEEEE B & MW ETIERARER A 99.0% 100% 99.0%
Deliver inward airmail items within 2 working days after arrival in Hong Kong ’ ' 13, FEICHRNEE AIE109) 88 W IR S 98.0% 99.8% 98.0%
S t ithin 10 minutes duri -peak h ' ' '
6. ALEAABEREFAMESEBEATERALESS  WERFABEETHE eTve csTomets Within T2 mintifes GHring honpeak otrs
B A+ E A BR = BT e PR 14. ECHRE/ESR Eﬁ%ﬂ&%jﬁﬁiﬁqﬁfﬁ.ﬁi\ﬂﬁ% o 98.0% 100% | 98.0%
Deliver local and inward parcels within 2 working days after day of posting or 99.5% 99.8% | 99.5% Serve customers within 25 minutes during peak hours or periods"™
arrival, to Hong Kong, Kowloon and major commercial and industrial areas in 15. B ARLEBEZMME TIERI5DBNZR
the New Territori d within 3 working days to oth ' . . . - _ 98.0% 100% | 98.0%
€ New ferritories, and within 5 working days 10 other areas Reset private franking machines at counters within 15 minutes
7. HOZEHeERMRREBEMATRE - BRI T PTIIR EE X E i E R EM IR M 16. MBALR 2B BB 2 2 THE RIS T i8Sy TR 5D BN SR
ZENE  BARTESMIK Deliver products under the Local Standing Order Service at counters within 15 98.0% 100% | 98.0%
Despatch outward air parcels, posted before the advertised latest time for minutes
posting, to the designated air carrier, subject to availability of flights
I I B RELERA 99,09, 100% | 99.0% SHEBBEEMR Philately & PostShop Products
_ . i .. . . . (o] (o] . (o]
Non-peak period Within 2 working days 17, BEEREBERTEENEBBLTREHTHOBS
R o E’i?_.'L{’EﬂEW ) 90.0% 100% | 90.0% Make products available for collection under the Local Standing Order Service 100% 100% 100%
Peak period Within 5 working days on the first day of issue of the related special stamps
8. %IZ!K%f%%ﬂﬁﬁﬁ\ﬁﬂﬁé@ﬁﬁfﬁﬁﬁ%ﬁ% - BIRI R AT AP B R R X = 58 TR BB 18. RRBEIBERFRLBEIIERATLHITBE R
MM ERR - BREETEEMIE Despatch overseas orders within 5 working days from date of receiving the 100% 100% 100%
Despatch outward bulk air mail items, posted before the advertised latest time order
for posting, to the designated air carrier, subject to availability of flights - — —
- —ETHEER 19. RBRFE B AELERARZRARZEDBIRSHFE
e L o . 90.0% 100% | 90.0% Open new philatelic accounts within 6 working days from date of receiving the 100% 100% 100%
Non-peak period Within 3 working days "
= i application
B A LA 90.0% 100% | 90.0% \
Peak period’ Within 7 working days ’ ' 20.  FAUKEI AN 4 5 i 0 Bk B 4 m B AR & 7S (B AR R AR P AT 48 2 W 4k A
Deliver local orders for PostShop products within 6 working days from date of 99.0% 100% 99.0%
receiving the order
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2014/15 PINEIAE 2015/16

BiE KRB B
Target Performance Target

AR # & Performance Pledge

E 7 BRI Certification Authority
21, ETHHEEIERARZAHMELBRE FRERBHRE
Process applications for Hongkong Post e-Cert within the working days stipulated
below:
cBEFEE(EAN) =X s BETEE () +X
e-Cert (Personal) 3 days e-Cert (Organisational) 10 days 99.0% 100% 99.0%
«EFEE(RT) +% cEFRE(ARS) +% . ’ o
e-Cert (Encipherment) 10 days e-Cert (Server) 10 days
G RE Hotlines
AEE = P 2R IEEE IS T E
22, RE-ZHNI2VRRERREE ' o ‘ ' o 90.0% 98.1% 90.0%
Answer calls to Hongkong Post Hotlines within 3 rings, i.e. within 12 seconds
I35 E B BURIS #9 R 55 Application for Postal Services
23. ERBEI(ERAPZTIRBHERE
Process applications for the following services within 5 working days:
s MIKIEHME e ARARERTHMHIZIRP
Post Office Boxes Opening of Deposit Accounts for
Posting of Mail in Bulk
o MHFEIRARTS o FRAFLAEE SN
Redirection Service Use of Private Franking Machine 100% 100% 100%
FEMEIERAPEZ THIRBE RS
Process applications for the following services within 4 working days:
o ({2 [0 & AR 75 o B O AR
Freepost Business Reply Service
o BIFR G 5 B H RS
International Business Reply Service
24, —(AIERAPZEBIHBORHNE TR ERHE
Process applications for Hongkong Post Circular Service by the following 100% 100% 100%
working day
25. —1If£%@m#%a¢iﬁaﬁﬂﬁﬁﬁ’ﬂ$.aﬁ . . . 99.0% 100% | 99.0%
Process applications for Permit Mailing Service by the following working day

it - Notes:
i. ¥mEH: ZAE+A- i.  Non-peak period: March to October.
i. mEHS: +—AZ=AR- ii. Peak period: November to February.

SHOEETSTTEE EONEr A TNRESAEBESE - iii. Peak periods include the first day of issue of philatelic products, seasonal pressure periods
FEEMES e (DEE— AL . 0 e s such as Christmas, Lunar New Year and the peak collection periods for government bills
gg%?ﬁgﬁ?ﬁfj;%fﬁéﬂé?ﬁiﬁ j:ﬁl At AnEE—E (i.e. the whole month of January and the last week of April, July and October). Details of
. RASEMRER SRR peak hours for individual post offices are displayed in the public halls of the post office
concerned.
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BHREEERS Post Office Trading Fund

(a) BEEEL®EK
(b) WA UABEBTF)
(c) XH(ABEETA)

(d) EfE&F / (B1R) AR BB

(e) BHE(LAREMET)
(f) BEEEERE(ABEETA)

(9) £EN(BASNREROEM)

(h) BRIEREKAGETT)
(i) BEAZ
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Rate of return on Fixed Assets
Revenue (HK$ million)

Expenditure (HK$ million)

Profit/(Loss) from operations (HK$ million)

Traffic (Million items)

Capital Investment (HK$ million)
Productivity (item per man-hour)
Unit handling cost (HK$)

Total number of staff

2015
&5

Performance
4.9%

5,344

5,175

169

1,212

364

137

1.97

7,032

2014
&R

Performance
-0.5%

5,249

5,252

3)

1,234

147

136

1.87

7.172

BHREEEHS Post Office Trading Fund

& 515 5047 BB B
it E

BYET®RE

Hute
LEARECERREAIENFS7ESABRES
EETMMBRE  ZFUHRIEEN201553
ABNBHFBRRAKREEEZ AL FENEEKES
x REDEHRNREAER  URETESFHHR
PR R EAK EREER -

HHEBELEESCHLCERHMEHRRAREN
B5F

BRELEECHCEBEEERRB (EEESEL)
(BA30E) BTG K REAVBRELAREBEEEM
RENIBRE  REEERAUNENANIES -
INEHBBRERIEEARUFHERMEBNEX
FHERPR AL ©

FETAELE
BNEERBEBERNEBAHZEVBRRELE
R BRERRBR(EEESKRD) FT1G)EREFZF
RBRETEAETTER - ELRRERBETERR
o WHREIRATES  UEEBREVBRERSE
TEAEMERERRAL -

#:r EE RS REPORT OF THE DIRECTOR OF AUDIT 55

Audit Commission

The Government of the Hong Kong
Special Administrative Region

Independent Audit Report

To the Legislative Council

| certify that | have examined and audited the financial statements of
the Post Office Trading Fund set out on pages 57 to 83, which comprise
the statement of financial position as at 31 March 2015, and the
statement of comprehensive income, statement of changes in equity
and statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and a summary
of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

General Manager, Post Office Trading Fund'’s
Responsibility for the Financial Statements

The General Manager, Post Office Trading Fund is responsible for the
preparation of financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with section 7(4) of the Trading Funds Ordinance (Cap. 430)
and Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards, and for such internal
control as the General Manager, Post Office Trading Fund determines
is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

My responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements
based on my audit. | conducted my audit in accordance with section
7(5) of the Trading Funds Ordinance and the Audit Commission
auditing standards. Those standards require that | comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the financial statements are free from
material misstatement.
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B RPTRFUERBRY B HREMBSER
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56 X% =it £ E &% REPORT OF THE DIRECTOR OF AUDIT

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence
about the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. The
procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including
the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk
assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the
entity’s preparation of financial statements that give a true and fair
view in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on
the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also includes
evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the General Manager,
Post Office Trading Fund, as well as evaluating the overall presentation
of the financial statements.

| believe that the audit evidence | have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for my audit opinion.

Opinion

In my opinion, the financial statements give a true and fair view of the
state of affairs of the Post Office Trading Fund as at 31 March 2015,
and of its results of operations and cash flows for the year then ended
in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards and
have been properly prepared in accordance with the manner provided
in section 7(4) of the Trading Funds Ordinance.

“’\”W

LAU Sun-wo

Assistant Director of Audit
for Director of Audit

13 October 2015

Audit Commission
26th Floor
Immigration Tower

7 Gloucester Road
Wanchai, Hong Kong

Z MUz & STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

#F2015%3H31H 1L Z for the year ended 31 March 2015
(LA B M F Tz 517~ Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

BHREEEHRS Post Office Trading Fund

B3

Note 2015 2014
k1] Turnover 3 5,343,894 5,249,224
BIENKAR Operating costs 4 (5,175,148) (5,251,850)
EEET  (FER) Profit / (Loss) from operations 168,746 (2,626)
Haug A Other income 5 106,244 139,508
ZBRFFRNET Profit before notional profits tax 274,990 136,882
2 HERH Notional profits tax 6 (49,756) (19,638)
EERF Profit for the year 225,234 117,244
Hth2EKE= Other comprehensive income - 5
FEHEZAKS Total comprehensive income for the year 225,234 117,244
Bl & & 45 3 Rate of return on fixed assets 7 4.9% -0.5%

F61EIEMMERANBFHRRA—D -

The notes on pages 61 to 83 form part of these financial statements.

BEBBBER 2014/15

57



58 X% B % ik % %= STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

201543 H31H as at 31 March 2015
(LM TFIThI31R Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

BHREEERS Post Office Trading Fund

B =
Note 2015 2014
JEREBRE Non-current assets
W BB REM Property, plant and equipment 8 2,651,754 2,624,869
BIVEE Intangible assets 9 42,587 36,016
FEHMIES Held-to-maturity securities 10 467,083 252,575
HNEE ST Placement with the Exchange Fund 1M 2,227,662 1,377,367
5,389,086 4,290,827
RERE Current assets
& Stocks 6,302 5,034
FEMIR R - #2 & RIANFIA Debtors, deposits and prepayments 245,484 208,436
JE M BRE A TR Amounts due from related parties 19 17,500 23,366
& M B 77 RIS Interest receivable from placement with the Exchange Fund 30,211 12,226
BEHMNES Held-to-maturity securities 10 319,094 208,588
RITER Bank deposits 702,442 1,834,368
& RRITH Cash and bank balances 151,743 149,557
1,472,776 2,441,575
REBRR Current liabilities
Be RFAWGRIE Deposits and receipts in advance (273,903) (263,363)
e iR N e B Creditors and accruals (826,878) (952,552)
ESBFIRE Provision for employee benefits 13 (86,279) (90,379)
JET RS A IR Amounts due to related parties 19 (438,781) (462,647)
e R EMEH Notional profits tax payable (54,360) (13,502)
(1,680,201) (1,782,443)
e (AfR) SESE Net current (liabilities) / assets (207,425) 659,132
HRERERDAR Total assets less current liabilities 5,181,661 4,949,959
ERBRE Non-current liabilities
BRI Deferred tax 12 (35,718) (26,821)
B ERTEE Provision for employee benefits 13 (498,649) (501,078)
(534,367) (527,899)
HERE NET ASSETS 4,647,294 4,422,060
BER R CAPITAL AND RESERVES
BERETER Trading fund capital 14 2,495,059 2,495,059
BRERE Development reserve 15 243,664 243,664
RERHN Retained earnings 16 1,908,571 1,683,337
4,647,294 4,422,060
Phn 1
L
TEE®RLL Mrs. Jessie Ting
BHEBEEEBLE General Manager,

2015 10H13H

F61EIEMMERANBFHRRAN—D -

Post Office Trading Fund
13 October 2015

Hongkong Post Annual Report 2014/15

The notes on pages 61 to 83 form part of these financial statements.

fE 3% # 8% STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY 59

#F2015%3H31H 1L Z for the year ended 31 March 2015
(LM T IThI3IR Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

BHREEEHRS Post Office Trading Fund

2015 2014
EMEeR Balance at beginning of year 4,422,060 4,346,528
FEHAZENRE Total comprehensive income for the year 225,234 117,244
FREMER Dividend paid during the year - (41,712)
FRER Balance at end of year 4,647,294 4,422,060

F61EIEMMERANBFHRRA—ED -

The notes on pages 61 to 83 form part of these financial statements.
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60 X% 382 % &% STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

# 2201543 H31H 1L Z for the year ended 31 March 2015
(LB F Tl 517~ Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

BHREEERS Post Office Trading Fund

EEFHAMRENE
EERF /(FR)
ME - REEREMITE
BV EERH
HE / FEHEYE - RIEBENSEHER
BT ASIBMARERERL
BB
EEBAMEMORD) /18 m

eI IR R IZ &R

FERTRBZEA LR OB D) /3240
e IR SR A & (SR 00) / R

FEURRIE A HIEZORD /(380
B &#&FEH
B ERENALSH
RREENREHE
B SR EBAE B MR ER
W (8m)
BABEEROES
BEBEEHE S
RO T
SNERSFHRIEM
BEWME REREHA
WA

HEME - REBREM

EE)s)
(RE) | RERRFEH R & FH
MEREMReRE

ENEE
AfERBERENREBHE
ReRERARE (BD) / BmMBE

FPHHRERERARS
FROBSRERARS

Cash flows from operating activities
Profit / (Loss) from operations
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment
Amortisation of intangible assets
Loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment

Unrealised foreign exchange loss on financial
instruments

(Decrease) / Increase in provision for employee
benefits

Decrease in creditors and deposits

(Decrease) / Increase in amounts due to related
parties

(Increase) / Decrease in debtors and stocks

Decrease / (Increase) in amounts due from related
parties

Notional profits tax paid
Net cash from operating activities
Cash flows from investing activities

Decrease / (Increase) in bank deposits with original
maturity over three months

Purchase of held-to-maturity securities
Redemption of held-to-maturity securities
Redemption of structured notes

Increase in placement with the Exchange Fund

Purchase of property, plant and equipment
and intangible assets

Sale proceeds from disposal of property, plant and
equipment
Interest received
Net cash (used in) / from investing activities
Cash flows from financing activities
Dividend paid
Net cash used in financing activities

Net (decrease) / increase in cash and cash
equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year

B
Note

18

(BRFEFIEBASN - 2 FEL BB T LB ©
Amount expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars, unless otherwise stated.)

81 % 3% & [t 5 NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 61

BHREEEHS Post Office Trading Fund

2015 2014
168,746 (2,626)
145,468 150,488

9,622 9,714
2,653 452

27 2,057
(6,529) 11,225
(119,149) (155,539)
(124,246) 5,431
(43,370) 24,062
5,866 (2,903)
- (17,269)

39,088 25,092
316,375 (270,000)
(530,908) (151,127)
208,498 200,000
- 393,442
(850,295) (65,589)
(87,279) (134,950)
475 11
90,681 110,119
(852,453) 81,906
- (41,712)
- (41,712)
(813,365) 65,286

1,666,925 1,601,639
853,560 1,666,925

F61EB3EMMERARBHIRKRAN—7D o

Hongkong Post Annual Report 2014/15

The notes on pages 61 to 83 form part of these financial statements.

—REH

RIMERE1995F7 B19BIRE (EEX IR
BI) (£430F) %3 - AR6IFBBARZ - £1995
FSAIAKLBRESEL S (BEET) -

EERESHN T EELSRME — MR E &M AR
. WTE20005 1 ARk AR Al 2 B #REA1E - RIS
TRFERT - H2007F4 8 - EFREBRH
EIB RS R A A IR o

TEETHE

(a) MHEEAEH
AR BHRERZBEALDANG T RAR
FIAEERANEEMBREER (AR
B EREREEGMASRNNME
ERNENEEMEREER BB
RALZRE RYE 2EESRMANTIES
ATERERAELT ©

(b) WA HRAOER
BREATEHBRRMARZBENERT
AR UARDFEIIRIN - RE MK & 7 B
EMGARERANETE ©

RENABTEMBRESENNMERKRT
REEBFLAHE At hBRR - &FH
B At RBREFESTRRNER
AREEREBEMEAET L2 ®RK
B R FRhFREENERER  BRAEL
BLEMERBEATHASSENRE
mHlET - fEREEMBERBEAHS
- @RALEHARBRESHER
MEERAGBEMREENER - AetER
HEBEREERATR -

General

The Post Office Trading Fund (POTF) was established on 1 August 1995
under the Legislative Council Resolution passed on 19 July 1995 pursuant
to sections 3, 4 and 6 of the Trading Funds Ordinance (Cap. 430).

The principal activities of the POTF are provision of general postal and

ancillary services, and electronic authentication services after the POTF
became a Recognised Certification Authority in January 2000. With
effect from April 2007, electronic authentication services are provided

through a contractor under the supervision of the POTF.

Significant accounting policies

(a)

Statement of compliance

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with
accounting principles generally accepted in Hong Kong and all
applicable Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (HKFRSs),
a collective term which includes all applicable individual HKFRSs,
Hong Kong Accounting Standards (HKASs) and Interpretations
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
(HKICPA). A summary of the significant accounting policies
adopted by the POTF is set out below.

Basis of preparation of the financial statements

The measurement basis used in the preparation of the financial
statements is historical cost except that trading financial
instruments are stated at their fair values as explained in the
accounting policies set out below.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with HKFRSs
requires management to make judgements, estimates and
assumptions that affect the application of policies and reported
amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses. The estimates
and associated assumptions are based on historical experience
and various other factors that are believed to be reasonable under
the circumstances, the results of which form the basis for making
judgements about carrying values of assets and liabilities that are
not readily apparent from other sources. Actual results may differ
from these estimates.

BBBBER 2014/15



62 -ﬁ- B %% ¥R 3 Fff =t NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(BRHEFIEBRS) - 2 FELAE BT LB ©
Amount expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars, unless otherwise stated.)

BHREEERS Post Office Trading Fund
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Significant accounting policies (continued)

(b) Basis of preparation of the financial statements (continued)

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an
ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised
in the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects
only that period, or in the period of the revision and future periods
if the revision affects both current and future periods.

There are no critical accounting judgements involved in the
application of the POTF's accounting policies. There are also no
key assumptions concerning the future, or other key sources of
estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting period, that
have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the next year.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment appropriated to the POTF on 1
August 1995 were measured initially at deemed cost equal to
the value contained in the Resolution of the Legislative Council
for the setting up of the POTF. Property, plant and equipment
acquired since 1 August 1995 are capitalised at the actual cost of
acquisition or installation.

The following items of property, plant and equipment are stated
at cost less accumulated depreciation and any impairment losses
(note 2(e)):

— land classified as held under a finance lease and buildings held
for own use situated thereon;

— other buildings held for own use appropriated to the POTF. The
land is regarded as a non-depreciating asset; and

— plant and equipment, including furniture and fittings, plant and
machinery, motor vehicles and computer systems.

(BRFEFIEBASN - 2 FEL BB T LB ©
Amount expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars, unless otherwise stated.)

BHREEEHS Post Office Trading Fund
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Significant accounting policies (continued)

(c)

(d)

Property, plant and equipment (continued)

Depreciation is calculated to write off the cost of items of property,
plant and equipment, less their estimated residual value, on a
straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives as follows:

— Land classified as held under over the unexpired term of lease
a finance lease

— Buildings situated on
leasehold land

over the shorter of the unexpired
term of lease and their estimated

useful lives
— Other buildings 20 to 40 years
— Furniture and fittings 5 years

— Plant and machinery 7 to 15 years

— Motor vehicles 4 to 5 years

— Computer systems 5 years

Gains or losses arising from the disposal of property, plant and
equipment are determined as the difference between the net disposal
proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and are recognised in
the statement of comprehensive income on the date of disposal.

Intangible assets

Intangible assets include acquired computer software licences and
capitalised development costs of computer software programs.
Expenditure on development of computer software programs is
capitalised if the programs are technically feasible and the POTF
has sufficient resources and intention to complete development.
The expenditure capitalised includes direct labour and cost of
materials. Intangible assets are stated at cost less accumulated
amortisation and any impairment losses (note 2(e)).

Amortisation of intangible assets is charged to the statement of
comprehensive income on a straight-line basis over the assets’
estimated useful lives of 5 years.
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(BRHEFIEBRS) - 2 FELAE BT LB ©
Amount expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars, unless otherwise stated.)

BHREEERS Post Office Trading Fund
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Significant accounting policies (continued)

(e) Impairment of fixed assets

(f)

The carrying amounts of fixed assets, including property, plant and
equipment and intangible assets, are reviewed at the end of each
reporting period to identify any indication of impairment. If any such
indication exists, an impairment loss is recognised in the statement
of comprehensive income whenever the carrying amount of an asset
exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount of an asset
is the greater of its fair value less costs to sell and value in use.

Financial assets and financial liabilities

(i) Initial recognition
The POTF classifies its financial assets and financial
liabilities into different categories at inception, depending
on the purpose for which the assets were acquired or the
liabilities were incurred. The categories are: trading financial
instruments, loans and receivables, held-to-maturity securities
and other financial liabilities.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are measured initially
at fair value, which normally equals to the transaction prices
plus, for loans and receivables, held-to-maturity securities
and other financial liabilities, transaction costs that are
directly attributable to the acquisition of the financial assets
or issue of the financial liabilities. Transaction costs on trading
financial instruments are expensed immediately.

The POTF recognises financial assets and financial liabilities on
the date it becomes a party to the contractual provisions of
the instrument. Regular way purchases and sales of financial
assets are accounted for at settlement date.

(BRAFBIEEBES) 2 BB T ISR ©

Amount expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars, unless otherwise stated.)

BHREEEHS Post Office Trading Fund
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Significant accounting policies (continued)

(f) Financial assets and financial liabilities (continued)
(ii) Categorisation

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with
fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in an
active market and which the POTF has no intention of trading.
This category includes debtors, amounts due from related
parties, interest receivable, placement with the Exchange
Fund, bank deposits and cash and bank balances.

Loans and receivables are carried at amortised cost using the
effective interest method less impairment losses, if any (note

2(f)(iv)).

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a financial asset or a financial liability and
of allocating the interest income or interest expense over the
relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate that
exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts or payments
through the expected life of the financial instrument or, when
appropriate, a shorter period to the net carrying amount
of the financial asset or financial liability. When calculating
the effective interest rate, the POTF estimates cash flows
considering all contractual terms of the financial instruments
but does not consider future credit losses. The calculation
includes all fees received or paid between parties to the
contract that are an integral part of the effective interest rate,
transaction costs and all other premiums or discounts.

Held-to-maturity securities

Held-to-maturity securities are non-derivative financial assets
with fixed or determinable payments and fixed maturity
which the POTF has the positive intention and ability to hold
to maturity, other than those that meet the definition of loans
and receivables.

Held-to-maturity securities are carried at amortised cost using
the effective interest method less impairment losses, if any
(note 2(f)(iv)).
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BHREEERS Post Office Trading Fund

2. FEEFERE)
() EMEERSMEE(E)

Significant accounting policies (continued)

(f) Financial assets and financial liabilities (continued)

(BRFEFIEBASN - 2 FEL BB T LB ©
Amount expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars, unless otherwise stated.)

BHREEEHS Post Office Trading Fund

2. TEEFERE)
(h) RERERRE
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Significant accounting policies (continued)

(h) Cash and cash equivalents

(i) 2¥|(&E)
AttHEE
H b & BB A B B BRI ORI 55
P AE SR

(iii) FEEER
ENeREENRBEERENE L%
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(ii) Categorisation (continued)
Other financial liabilities
Other financial liabilities are carried at amortised cost using
the effective interest method.

(iii) Derecognition
A financial asset is derecognised when the contractual rights
to receive the cash flows from the financial asset expire, or
where the financial asset together with substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership have been transferred.

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation
specified in the contract is discharged or cancelled, or when
it expires.

(iv) Impairment of financial assets

The carrying amounts of loans and receivables and held-to-
maturity securities are reviewed at the end of each reporting
period to determine whether there is objective evidence of
impairment. If any such evidence exists, an impairment loss
is recognised in the statement of comprehensive income as
the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the
present value of estimated future cash flows discounted at
the asset’s original effective interest rate. If in a subsequent
period the amount of such impairment loss decreases and the
decrease can be linked objectively to an event occurring after
the impairment loss was recognised, the impairment loss is
reversed through the statement of comprehensive income.

(g) Stocks

Stocks consist of postage stamps and aerogrammes held in the
stamp vaults at the Headquarters. They are stated at the lower of
cost and net realisable value. Cost is determined using the first-
in, first-out method. Net realisable value is the estimated selling
price in the ordinary course of business, less the estimated costs
necessary to make the sale.
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Cash and cash equivalents include cash and bank balances,
and other short-term highly liquid investments that are readily
convertible to known amounts of cash and subject to an
insignificant risk of changes in value, having been within three
months of maturity when placed or acquired.

Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised for liabilities of uncertain timing or
amount when the POTF has a present legal or constructive
obligation arising as a result of past events, it is probable that
an outflow of economic benefits will be required to settle the
obligation and a reliable estimate can be made. Where the time
value of money is material, provisions are stated at the present
value of the expenditure expected to settle the obligation.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic benefits
will be required, or the amount cannot be estimated reliably, the
obligation is disclosed as a contingent liability, unless the probability
of outflow of economic benefits is remote. Possible obligations,
whose existence will only be confirmed by the occurrence or non-
occurrence of one or more future events, are also disclosed as
contingent liabilities unless the probability of outflow of economic
benefits is remote.

Employee benefits

The employees of the POTF comprise civil servants and contract
staff. Salaries, staff gratuities, and annual leave entitlements are
accrued and recognised as expenditure in the year in which the
associated services are rendered by the staff. For civil servants, staff
on-costs, including pensions and housing benefits provided to the
staff by the Government of the Hong Kong Special Administrative
Region (the Government), are charged as expenditure in the year
in which the associated services are rendered.

For civil servants employed on pensionable terms, their pension
liabilities are discharged by reimbursement of the staff on-cost
charged by the Government. For other staff, contributions to
Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme are charged to the statement
of comprehensive income as incurred.
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BHREEERS Post Office Trading Fund

2. FEEFERE)
(k) BZEREH

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

RIE (RBHEA) (£112F) - 28
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(i)

(ii)

(iii)

Significant accounting policies (continued)

(k) Notional profits tax

The POTF has no tax liability under the Inland Revenue
Ordinance (Cap.112). However, the Government requires the
POTF to pay to the General Revenue an amount in lieu of
profits tax (i.e. notional profits tax) calculated on the basis
of the provisions of the Inland Revenue Ordinance. Notional
profits tax expense for the year comprises current tax and
movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities.

Current tax is the expected tax payable on the taxable income
for the year, using tax rates enacted or substantively enacted
at the end of the reporting period, and any adjustment to tax
payable in respect of previous years.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities arise from deductible
and taxable temporary differences respectively, being the
differences between the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities for financial reporting purposes and their tax bases.
Deferred tax assets also arise from unused tax losses and
unused tax credits.

All deferred tax liabilities, and all deferred tax assets to the
extent that it is probable that future taxable profits will
be available against which the assets can be utilised, are
recognised.

The amount of deferred tax recognised is measured based
on the expected manner of realisation or settlement of the
carrying amounts of the assets and liabilities, using tax rates
enacted or substantively enacted at the end of the reporting
period. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are not discounted.

The carrying amount of a deferred tax asset is reviewed at
the end of each reporting period and is reduced to the extent
that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will
be available to allow the related tax benefit to be utilised.
Any such deduction is reversed to the extent that it becomes
probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available.

(BRFEFIEBASN - 2 FEL BB T LB ©
Amount expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars, unless otherwise stated.)
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Significant accounting policies (continued)

(I) Revenue recognition
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(i) Revenue from postal services is recognised as the services are
provided. Allowance for a measured share of stamp income
for the amount of revenue from postage stamps sold in
respect of which postal service has not yet been provided is
made at the end of the reporting period.

(i) Interest income is recognised as it accrues using the effective
interest method.

(iii) Realised gains or losses on financial instruments are
recognised in the statement of comprehensive income when
the financial instruments are derecognised. Changes in fair
value of trading financial instruments are recognised as
revaluation gains or losses in the statement of comprehensive
income in the period in which they arise.

(iv) Other income is recognised on an accrual basis.

(m) Terminal dues and charges

Cross-border mail service requires cooperation between postal
operators in different countries or regions. The costs for delivery
of mail items incurred by the postal operator in the destination
country or region have to be recovered from the postal operator
in the originating country or region. Such costs are terminal
dues for letters, and charges for parcels and express mail service
(collectively referred to as terminal dues and charges). The rates
applicable to terminal dues are determined by the Universal
Postal Union every four years. The rates applicable to parcels can
be adjusted according to inflation whereas those applicable to
express mail service are determined by individual postal operators
annually. Nevertheless, a postal operator may enter into bilateral
agreements with another operator to determine the rates of
terminal dues and charges.

Terminal dues and charges recoverable from other postal operators
are included under Turnover - General mail services (note 3).
Terminal dues and charges payable to other postal operators are
included under Operating costs - General mail operating expenses
(note 4). They are recognised in the accounts when the volume
(i.e. weight and number of mail items) of mail processed and the
applicable rates of charge can be measured / estimated reliably.
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BHREEERS Post Office Trading Fund BHREEEHS Post Office Trading Fund

2. FESTEERE) Significant accounting policies (continued) 3, g Turnover
(m) RKHBREHE(E) (m) Terminal dues and charges (continued) 2015 2014
ELEES FHEEMBELLEEHERRM When anew rate of charge for a period is being negotiated between : )
BT EER - ZHENREBE I E— the POTF and another postal operator, the amount of charges —REBRIRT (S (el SSEss 5,174,726 2,092,390
HR 2R BRERIELSTREERER - NG during that period will be determined based on an estimated rate, HRIRA Miscellaneous revenue sz s
EHFHBEXRFIREERER - —I5H which is equal to the rate in force for the preceding period. If the 5,343,894 5,249,224
ERBEMREBXREBERER 2 ENE new agreed rate of charge is different from the estimated rate,
HHBERGENREENGERT 2 HRHEE an adjustment representing the difference between the amount \
R o of charges calculated under the new agreed rate and that under 4. BIFEAK Operating costs
the estimated rate will be recognised in the year the new rate is 2015 2014
agreed.
BITAA Staff costs 2,561,856 2,481,452
(n) shKsipE (n) Foreign currency translation — R IEPIEEFR General mail operating expenses 2,209,907 2,370,665
REEWINER BT 5 B HIEEEEBR Foreign currency transactions during the year are translated MeRERE Rental and management charges 218,853 209,935
EEBTT - UIEBTTABNNEBEEN into Hong Kong dollars using the spot exchange rates at the P R Depreciation and amortisation 155,090 160,202
EERBRERERANEHERBE 55 transaction dates. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in rhRTTHE Central administration overheads 17,736 16,596
oo TAINEBREZRBEEZHENGERARE currencies other than Hong Kong dollars are translated into Hong TS EE R Marketing expenses 9,677 10,931
R e Kong dollars using the closing exchange rate at the end of the st 28 Audit fees 2,029 2,069
reporting period. All foreign currency translation differences are 5,175,148 5 251,850
recognised in the statement of comprehensive income.
(o) Bﬁl@\f N - (0) Related p.arties | o 5. EAULA Other income
BIE (EEERBKEN) RUNEEESR The POTF is a separate accounting entity within the Government
BNETH— B E5EL( - FA - & established under the Trading Funds Ordinance. During the year, 2015 2014
BASTHEERPSHEZBEALHE the POTF has entered into transactions with various related parties, . o
IS - ESHBEREZARKRRBFH including government bureaux and departments, trading funds %E%&Tiﬂ}’&%ﬁﬁlmﬁﬁ’g Interes‘F income from financial assets not
R e e e d dep - trading SREEOTISRA at fair value
;Zﬁigggfgjﬂgimiﬁiiﬁg%ﬂﬁ ian:tl'juefr:r;zr;qzllytsutc:anomous bod?es ;ontrc;llled or S|gn|f|cin‘Fly - R s 20,154 21,397
- i " _ y the Government, in the ordinary course of its HNEESTER Placement with the Exchange Fund 68,280 61,643
business. R ES Structured notes - 178
(p) FEIRKLIETEERMKRELEANTE (p) Impact of new and revised HKFRSs RITFERL Bank deposits 17,584 17,460
BEREMAEEB/ME T LB The HKICPA has issued certain new and revised HKFRSs that AT ER B F A Bank balances and others 226 230
WEBMBHmELEL - RAGFHEHENL are first effective or available for early adoption for the current 106,244 100,908
HIRAITERAN o A B MK T2 WA G IX accounting period. There have been no changes to the accounting
XK WRERZEFERMIDBE(IRE - policies applied in the financial statements for the years presented Net re_a|is_ed a.nd reyalgation gains on
derivative financial instruments and
@ @izl o dnese developmerit, FASRTARGHILEANFERREMKE  structured notes - 38,600
HER WS ARMNENERLE BH K The POTF has not applied any new HKFRSs that are not yet 106,244 139,508

R BB M B E LA (M 5E22) -
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effective for the current accounting period (note 22).

BBBBER 2014/15



72 'ﬁ' B %% ¥R 3 Fff =t NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(BRAFBIEEBRS) » 2 BB T ISR
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BHREEERS Post Office Trading Fund

6. BHENEB
(@) REEWERAMBRNEEREB

Notional profits tax

(a) The notional profits tax charged to the statement of comprehensive

mE : income is arrived at as follows:
2015 2014

THR™ Current tax

Provision for notional profits tax for
REEEBEFISHOEE the year 40,859 13,502

Under-provision in respect of
LEEREBETR last year - 1
B FER R Deferred tax

Origination and reversal of temporary
BRMERENEERER differences 8,897 6,135
ZBRFER Notional profits tax 49,756 19,638

(b) BiEXHESTHERRERBR

=114

"

(b) The reconciliation between tax expense and accounting profit at

HERT : applicable tax rates is as follows:
2015 2014

EEFET A AT Profit before notional profits tax 274,990 136,882
REBHEHE16.5%(2014 : 16.5%) Tax at Hong Kong profits tax rate

STEOTIE of 16.5% (2014: 16.5%) 45,373 22,586
—RETRIERER One-off tax reduction (20) (10)
TR R 2 H B R 2 Tax effect of non-deductible expenses 8,665 8,285
R ANTFIETE Tax effect of non-taxable revenue (4,262) (11,224)

Under-provision in respect of

LFEBETR last year - 1
BEBE W Notional tax expense 49,756 19,638

7. EEEEEKE
BrEENRESUNLEZEBE(TE
FERHEWA - FBEZEFRITESRTA
REREESFNFER REMWESES
BIRUBEEEETHFEMSHNED
o BEBEREYE  RERSEMM
BIEE - @"MHARRETE  BHE
BESNEINNEFRETEEEZE
REAH59%(2014:5.9%) °
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Rate of return on fixed assets

The rate of return on fixed assets is calculated as total comprehensive income
(excluding interest income, interest expenses and net realised and revaluation
gains or losses on derivative financial instruments and structured notes)
divided by average net fixed assets, and expressed as a percentage. Fixed
assets include property, plant and equipment and intangible assets. The POTF
is expected to meet a target rate of return on fixed assets of 5.9% (2014:
5.9%) per year as determined by the Financial Secretary.

(BRAFBIEEBES) 2 BB T ISR ©
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8. W%  REK=EM

Property, plant and equipment

TREF RAREE - REREW EH EEEXA

Land and Furniture  Plant and Motor  Computer et

buildings and fittings machinery vehicles systems Total
5% 3 Cost
201354818 At 1 April 2013 3,191,619 554,141 721,672 67,803 90,656 4,625,891
BEA /B Additions / Transfers 48,571 26,124 39,166 5,811 16,993 136,665
HE /i Disposals - (20,432) (18,204) (3,365) - (42,001)
#201493A318 At 31 March 2014 3,240,190 559,833 742,634 70,249 107,649 4,720,555
201454818 At 1 April 2014 3,240,190 559,833 742,634 70,249 107,649 4,720,555
B /e Additions / Transfers 256,917 34,123 26,456 11,224 19,541 348,261
HE /i Disposals (228,200) (69,827) (192,397) (3.835) (941) (495,200)
#2015%3A310 At 31 March 2015 3,268,907 524,129 576,693 77,638 126,249 4,573,616
REHAE Accumulated depreciation
201364818 At 1 April 2013 825,298 468,430 566,225 46,746 80,037 1,986,736
FRNEH Charge for the year 71,447 34,691 34,267 9,048 1,035 150,488
HE /iEEEEE  Written back on disposal - (20,010) (18,204) (3,324) - (41,538)
7201493H318 At 31 March 2014 896,745 483,111 582,288 52,470 81,072 2,095,686
201464818 At 1 April 2014 896,745 483,111 582,288 52,470 81,072 2,095,686
FREA Charge for the year 75,735 31,432 29,069 8,108 1,124 145,468
&/ FEE5EE Written back on disposal (57,811) (64,535) (192,170) (3.835) (941) (319,292)
#2015%3A318 At 31 March 2015 914,669 450,008 419,187 56,743 81,255 1,921,862
IRER{E Net book value
2015%£3A31H 31 March 2015 2,354,238 74,121 157,506 20,895 44,994 2,651,754
2014438318 31 March 2014 2,343,445 76,722 160,346 17,779 26,577 2,624,869
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9. BR&EE Intangible assets M. IEESER Placement with the Exchange Fund
BB ERR RGN HNEE S FRAERR 22277184870 (2014 The balance of the placement with the Exchange Fund amounted to
Computer software licences and 13.774185850) - Heh 1288 T AEAE  HK$2,227.7 milion (2014: HK$1,377.4 million), being the original
RO 9 TEATAERER 0577188 placement of HK$1,200.0 million and the second placement of HK$970.0
2015 2014 J0(2014 : 1.77418% ) Q| AR S B R B million plus HK$57.7 million (2014: HK$177.4 million) interest paid but
e - EARE #ARREAFE o 7 AR not yet withdrawn at the end of the reporting period. The term of the
o o F(REZXB-L:)  BATERENREEF placements are six years from the date of placement, during which the
£47) At beginning of year 360,864 350,956 o - .
Ko amount of original placement cannot be withdrawn.
BB/ ER Additions / Transfers 16,193 9,908
HE /5l Disposals (10,117) - INEESTFRABIREF1ABEEHNETE S Interest on the placement is payable at a fixed rate determined every
R At end of year 366,940 360.864 RiAE  c ZEXRESREA/BERTF January. The rate is the average annual investment return of the Exchange
WEHEERELRR  K=FHINEES Fund’s Investment Portfolio for the past six years or the average annual
BEtEs Accumulated amortisation BAEELr—EAFENTFHFERZ W& yield of three-year Exchange Fund Notes for the previous year subject to
E1] At beginning of year 324,848 315,134 WEESE - TRA0% ° 2015FEE B X a minimum of zero percent, whichever is the higher. The interest rate has
FAER Charge for the year 9,622 9,714 HEF55% 20145 BREF3.6% ° been fixed at 5.5% per annum for the year 2015 and at 3.6% per annum
HE /T8 Disposals (10,117) = for the year 2014.
FR At end of year 324,353 324,848
EEBR Deferred tax
WRIERE Net book value M BARRRANERELEF KA EE8 Major components of deferred tax recognised in the statement of financial
TR At end of year 42,587 36,016 D MEEREEMT position and the movements during the year are as follows:
REEETER
10. 2 HImmME S Held-to-maturity securities BT ERRE
Depreciation
2015 2014 allowances
TS 38 55 LA S5 AR AR 51 1 Debit securities at amortised cost: inhexcelss 0; E{ﬁgﬂ%ﬁfﬁ
the relate ther
p— N \\\* > N =3 —_ I I -

REAAIN LT LfStEd 9Ut5'de Hong Kong 108,688 depreciation and temporary @t
-REE LT — Listed in Hong Kong 202,119 202,625 . ST s Total
-3EWm — Unlisted 584,058 149,850

20134 F1 B AR Balance at 1 April 2013 21,666 (980) 20,686
A el Charged / (Crediited) to
FIERFH - Remaini turity: statement of
e emaining maturity- REmEUKERNE / (BE) comprehensive income 6,414 (279) 6,135
TEWE Within one year 319,094 208,588
20143 A31 B &8 Balance at 31 March 2014 28,080 (1,259) 26,821
1A L Over one year 467,083 252,575
786,177 461,163 2014541 B## Balance at 1 April 2014 28,080 (1,259) 26,821
Charged / (Credited) to
statement of
REMEBEERING / (BE) comprehensive income 8,902 (5) 8,897
201553 A31 AR Balance at 31 March 2015 36,982 (1,264) 35,718
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13.

14.

15.

16.

EERNRE

IR ERE HAER B BARE AR
BTEEFBRANEENRMES M
BE(RAMZE2())

HRBRFHEERSHRE

BRMEE

Provision for employee benefits

This represents the estimated liability for employees’ annual leave and
obligations on contract-end gratuities payable to contract staff for services
rendered up to the end of the reporting period (also see note 2())).

Trading fund capital

This represents the Government’s investment in the POTF.

Development reserve

2015 2014

FH R F R

Balance at beginning and end of year 243,664 243,664

2015F3A31HERAERERENES - 7]
FREBREBRNERE o

The balance at 31 March 2015 is uncommitted and is earmarked for future
development.

REBF Retained earnings
2015 2014
FHEER Balance at beginning of year 1,683,337 1,566,093
Total comprehensive income for
FEAZERE the year 225,234 117,244
FIR R Balance at end of year 1,908,571 1,683,337
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Proposed dividend

For the year ended 31 March 2015, the POTF proposed a dividend of
HK$112.6 million, based on the total comprehensive income for the year
and the target dividend payout ratio of 50% (2014: 50%) stated in the
annual business plan approved by the Secretary for Financial Services and
the Treasury.

HEREREES Cash and cash equivalents
2015 2014
e RIRITE Cash and bank balances 151,743 149,557
RITER Bank deposits 702,442 1,834,368
854,185 1,983,925

Less: Bank deposits with original
& RAEBRA=MEA L ERRITER maturity beyond three months (625) (317,000)
ReMhERRE Cash and cash equivalents 853,560 1,666,925
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Related party transactions

Apart from those separately disclosed in the financial statements, the other
material related party transactions for the year are summarised as follows:

(@) services provided to related parties included general postal services
and agency services, which are compatible with postal related services.
The total revenue derived from these services amounted to HK$231.0
million (2014: HK$215.4 million);

(b) services received from related parties included computer services,
printing services, training services, building management and
maintenance, rental of accommodation, central administration and
auditing services. The total cost incurred on these services amounted
to HK$202.2 million (2014: HK$177.6 million)
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Related party transactions (continued)

(0)

accquisition of fixed assets from related parties included fitting
out projects of post offices, acquisition of land and buildings,
plant and machinery, computer systems and motor vehicles. The
total cost of these assets amounted to HK$48.9 million (2014:
HK$91.1 million); and

the POTF received government grants relating to the provision
of electronic services through a contractor. During the year,
government grants of HK$16.9 million (2014: HK$15.1 million)
were deducted from the related expenses incurred by the POTF.
As at 31 March 2015, the balance of government grants carried
forward to the next year amounted to HK$16.1 million (2014:
HK$19.6 million).

the POTF is required to pay notional market rental on premises
leased from the Government. The notional market rental for the
Airport Post Office has been waived by the Government since
April 2006. Subject to annual approval by the Government, the
notional market rental for Tsim Sha Tsui Post Office has been
waived since 2009-10 and the notional market rentals for another
six post offices have been waived since 2011-12. For the year
ended 31 March 2015, the notional market rentals waived for
these eight leased premises amounted to HK$30.3 million (2014:
HK$28.5 million).

Services rendered to or received from related parties which were

also available to the public were charged at the rates payable by the

general public. Services which were available only to related parties

were charged on a full cost recovery basis. Fixed assets supplied by

related parties were charged at full cost.

Balances with related parties as at 31 March 2015 are set out in the

statement of financial position.
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Commitments

(a)

Capital commitments
At 31 March 2015, the POTF had capital commitments, so far as
not provided for in the financial statements, as follows:

2015 2014
Authorised and
EEREL contracted for 69,776 127,919
Authorised but not yet
iR RED contracted for 140,542 257,343
210,318 385,262
(b) REHERIRE (b) Operating lease commitments

fE20153H31H » TeBUHMHE S
KERENARRKEEEERABNOT ¢

At 31 March 2015, the total future minimum lease payments
under non-cancellable operating leases for leased properties
were payable as follows:

2015 2014

—FE R Not later than one year 116,614 109,136
Later than one year but not

—FRETLZREF later than five years 262,004 270,567

hE% Later than five years 1,198,029 1,171,868

1,576,647 1,551,571

21. R ER

(a)

REBE

AREBINNBAKRR  €EESRRSR
BERERERTANKREHES - REHAR
RREEHRNES  INEESHFRRRITE
R BEEEHREMBCRIANKRER
BRAKRE -

Financial risk management

(a) Investment policy

To provide an ancillary source of income, surplus cash is invested in
a portfolio of financial instruments. The portfolio includes held-to-
maturity securities, placement with the Exchange Fund and bank
deposits. It is the POTF's policy that all investments in financial
instruments should be principal-protected.
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21. MKREKREE(E)
(0 F=EEk (c) Interest rate risk

21. B ERER(8) Financial risk management (continued)

(b) EWER

Financial risk management (continued)

(b) Currency risk

EREREERTANQAFHEIARKRER
EEREXEHMEHNER - 2EESE
ERHINERR  YEBEENBEREER L
SNEGH - WREBLEEESERLEEBRR

REKEBTE -

FR LEESELERBZRAERNER
W5 B8 53,2808 8T (2014 : [EXEBEF
RE830E BT ©
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LA .
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Currency risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a
financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in currency
exchange rates. The POTF monitors its foreign currency exposure
and may consider to enter into foreign exchange contracts when
circumstances arise to protect it from the impact of currency
fluctuation during the normal course of business.

During the year, the POTF recognised a net exchange gain of
HK$32.8 million (2014: a net exchange loss of HK$8.3 million) in
the statement of comprehensive income.

The table below summarises the POTF's foreign currency exposure
at the end of the reporting period:

2= = B 15 R T 5 1) R 2 B W 5| ZUE IR AV AL
B o MEREBRAE -0 R/AFENERR
EBEREMERER

NFEMNEERESRTANQAFEGED
SR MEEER - HREEESH
RITER R 2R EFREE N KT E
B - BEWSNELA  BLEENATE
BETK - AW - AR ELEESIRHEHK
AMEFIR - mBFREH TG ERIKREE
REBREGHBI R

RenENERRESHTANKIRER
EERMSNXEHmMEBHNER - SEE

Interest rate risk refers to the risk of loss arising from changes in
market interest rates. This can be further classified into fair value
interest rate risk and cash flow interest rate risk.

Fair value interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value of a
financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market
interest rates. Since all of the POTF’s bank deposits and held-to-
maturity securities bear interest at fixed rates, their fair values will
fall when market interest rates increase. However, as they are all
stated at amortised cost, changes in market interest rates will not
affect their carrying amounts and the POTF's profit and reserves.

Cash flow interest rate risk is the risk that future cash flows of a
financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market

EEZMS e /ééom a8 SHANREREMNERR - RAARITLE interest rates. The POTF is exposed to cash flow interest rate risk
Assets Bonaes e Lkl BRBRMIS ENNEFE - EEERR T — because its bank balances bear interest at rates determined by
BH I F E R TS RS RIE N T Al 6215 reference to market interest rates. The management considers
* US dollar S LAY SRR AT AR S0EE RS o InERAE IR D RS a 50 basis points increase / decrease in market interest rates in
ARE Renminbi L > 153,344 > HERBESE  FANMSRAREZEK the coming financial year to be reasonably possible. Had such an
e Euro 3,468 Al 3,044 3,752 m IR AS0EETT (20144 - 50878 increase / decrease occurred at the end of the reporting period,
FERIE SR Sfpaeel BrEig) R e P £2{870 SLBZ12 JL) ° the interest income and the total comprehensive income for the
H A Other foreign currencies 19,973 523 23,591 92 year would have been increased / decreased by HK$0.5 million
573,402 456,346 910,684 633,837 (2014: HK$0.5 million).
ERERAT —EAHBRFENETLET The management considers a 0.5% increase / decrease in the (d) EERR (d) Credit risk

RSB R T O35 N/ M2 0.5% ° 1A
BRI/ RO EREHERBELE - NF
ERRE2EREEEEMN mA1308 8T
(2014 : 28087 7T) °

EEENRAT — AN BEERNERRERK
BRETANEMEE LB TEZESE
B T RIBEE AN/ W 2 5% o a0 #3850/
WMOTEMERERBELE  AEFENESD
W EGER D/ EN7808 BT (2014 ¢
1,6608%87T) °

BELASRENNE - RREEZNE
EEAREREHERAFANERHIA -
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exchange rate of the US dollar against the Hong Kong dollar in
the coming financial year to be reasonably possible. Had such an
increase / decrease occurred at the end of the reporting period,
the total comprehensive income for the year would have been
increased / decreased by HK$1.3 million (2014: HK$2.8 million).

The management also considers a 5% increase / decrease in the
exchange rates of Special Drawing Rights and foreign currencies
other than US dollar against the Hong Kong dollar in the coming
financial year to be reasonably possible. Had such an increase /
decrease occurred at the end of the reporting period, the total
comprehensive income for the year would have been decreased /
increased by HK$7.8 million (2014: HK$16.6 million).

The above sensitivity analyses have been prepared assuming that
the change in exchange rates had been applied to the financial
instruments in existence at the end of the reporting period.

EERRESBTAN—FREEEEALE
BOEREMSIRS—FEEHHELNA
o

LEESAMERRBRAGAFEELHRR
HOEFPRESRARER S BEHOBBR
% - HEARNRZXZHFNEERBAEUEE
BTUARR - BEHEBRABSRBEEZ
RXPHUFONFTARRAREERR - —REE
RS KR o

AREBREEEER « FAERFREER
INEBRIRRT -

Credit risk is the risk that one party to a financial instrument will
fail to discharge an obligation and cause the other party to incur
a financial loss.

The POTF has policies in place to ensure that wholesale postal
services are provided to customers with an appropriate credit
history. Credit exposure to an individual counterparty is restricted
by credit limits. The counterparty’s payment profile and credit
exposure are continuously monitored by respective management.
Postal services to retail customers are substantially settled in cash.

To minimise credit risks, all fixed deposits are placed with licensed
banks in Hong Kong.
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21. MKREBERE(E)
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Financial risk management (continued)

(d) Credit risk (continued)
For the placement with the Exchange Fund, the credit risk is
considered to be low.

At the end of the reporting period, the credit quality of
investments in held-to-maturity securities, analysed by the lower
of ratings designated by Moody’s, Standard & Poor’s or Fitch’s,
was as follows:

2015 2014
RIEEFRIIHHFHZEBRRNE Held-to-maturity securities
by credit rating
Aal Z Aa3 / AA+ E AA- Aal to Aa3/ AA+ to AA- 202,119 202,625
Al £ A3/ A+ E A- Al to A3/ A+ to A- 534,094 258,538
Baal # Baa3/BAA+ & BAA- Baal to Baa3 / BAA+ to BAA- 49,964 =
786,177 461,163

LEESRHACREEMAARNRZSEE
REBRASENERS MERNIREE -

(e) RBEZRER
mBETEREREEETRSR A EAEH
B B ER B B R B0 LB

HEEERDESARIE  2EETRBE
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() HtvftEms
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2015938318 » 201456 M2015F 82X
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BB7L(2014 : 5808BTT) °
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The maximum exposure to credit risk of the financial assets of the
POTF is equal to their carrying amounts at the end of the reporting
period.

(e) Liquidity risk
Lquidity risk is the risk that an entity will encounter difficulty in
meeting obligations associated with financial liabilities.

The POTF manages liquidity risk by forecasting the amount of
cash required and monitoring its working capital to ensure that all
liabilities due and known funding requirements could be met.

(f) Other financial risk

The POTF is exposed to financial risk arising from change in the
interest rate on the placement with the Exchange Fund which is
determined every January (note 11). It was estimated that, as at
31 March 2015, a 50 basis point increase / decrease in the interest
rates for 2014 and 2015, with all other variables held constant,
would increase / decrease the profit for the year and reserves by
HK$9.3 million (2014: HK$5.8 million).
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Possible impact of amendments, new standards and
interpretations issued but not yet effective for the year
ended 31 March 2015

Up to the date of issue of these financial statements, the HKICPA has
issued a number of amendments, new standards and interpretations
which are not yet effective for the year ended 31 March 2015 and
which have not been early adopted in these financial statements.
These include the following which may be relevant to the POTF:

Effective for
accounting periods
beginning on or after

HKFRS 9, Financial Instruments 1 January 2018

HKFRS 15, Revenue from Contracts with
Customers

1 January 2018

The POTF is in the process of making an assessment of what the
impact of these amendments, new standards and interpretations is
expected to be in the period of initial adoption. So far it has concluded
that the adoption of them is unlikely to have a significant impact on
the financial statements.
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